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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Yes Capital (India) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Yes Capital
(India) Private Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as (“the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Section of our report, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
India Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind As”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022,
their consolidated Loss and consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Based on the records produced before us and according to information and explanations
provided to us, a First Information Report (FIR) was registered by the Central Bureau of
Investigation (CBI), EO-1 on 7th March 2020 on the basis of which an ECIR and thereafter a
Charge sheet as well as supplementary charge sheet on the same day was also filed by the
Directorate of Enforcement under Section 3 and 4 of the Prevention of Money Laundering Act,
2002, on the same date, relating to a purported conspiracy between April - June 2018, against
the Company, its group company namely DOIT Urban Ventures Private Limited (DUVPL) and
the Promoters of the Company, interalia, in respect of a Loan amounting to Rs. 600 crores which
was sanctioned by M/s. Dewan Housing Finance Limited (DHFL) in the earlier years, and is
reflected as Borrowings in the books of the group company. Subsequently, the Company has
received Provisional Attachment Orders in relation to the above ECIR which includes
attachment of bank accounts, balance in Fixed Deposits, Mutual Funds, paintings and
immovable properties of the Company and other promoter group entities.

On account of above stated legal proceedings, pending final outcome, we are unable to ascertain
the extent of liability that may arise on the Company since the accounting and disclosure for
contingent/legal liabilities is complex and judgmental due to the difficulty in predicting the
outcome of the matter and inter alia, estimating the potential impact on the Standalone Financial
Ind As Statements, if the outcome is unfavourable, and if the amount involved is, or can be,
material to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole. Refer Note No. 45 1o the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in this context.
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2. Refer Note No. 8, regarding Other financial assets which includes Input Tax Credit recoverable
balance under the head “Balance with government authorities”, which was not charged off to
revenue by the Holding Company, to be in line with Section 17(2) the Goods and Services Tax
Act, amounting to Rs. 1443 Thousands, with a view to utilize the same in near future having
consequential monetary impact on the respective assets and Loss for the year to the above
extent.

3. Refer Note No. 63 where 3 group Companies have not accounted for Interest I ncome on the
basis of waiver request received by the Holding Company on account of ongoing Investigation
on promoters as well as Financial crises at group level which was further impacted due to
disruptions on account of COVID-19 pandemic, having consequential impact on the profit and
assets aggregating to Rs. 43344.18 thousands.

4. Refer Note No. 50 where 2 group companies have accurnulated losses and their Net Worth has
been partially eroded. However, the respective Company’s Ind AS financial statements are
prepared on going concern basis based on the commitment by the Holding Company to extend
financial support to the respective companies for meeting the obligations expected to arise in
foreseeable future.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (CAl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAIL We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Based on our comments in Para 1 of Basis of Qualified Opinion above, Provisional Attachment
Orders (POAs) were issued by ED, attaching the fixed deposits and bank accounts of the Group
Companies having an aggregate balance of Rs. 131,953 thousands as on March 31, 2022. The
management has filed an application contesting with the Adjudicating Authority of ED, New
Delhi.

2. Attention is drawn to Note No. 49 of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements regarding a
merger application filed by the Holding Company with National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT), New Delhi from 1st April, 2020 pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) between
the Holding Company, its subsidiary and its sub subsidiaries. As on the date of the approval of
the financial statement, the NCLT has directed the petitioners to serve notice of the proposed
scheme on the concerned Regional Director, ROC, Official Liquidator, Income Tax department,
CIC Division of RBI and other sectoral regulators having significant bearing in the operations
of the petitioner companies.

3. Attention is drawn to note no. 62 where one of the group Company had initiated Insolvency
proceedings against Ideal Energy Projects Limited in respect of a loan amounting to Rs. 360,000
thousands assigned by a bank in favour of the group Company in the eatlier years and which
was declared as doubtful and accordingly 50% of the total loan amount was provided for in the
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same year. On account of the NCLT proceedings, pending final outcome, the group Company
has considered an additional provision of Rs. 9,000 thousands in the current year. Subsequently
during the year, NCLT, Mumbai bench has passed order for approving the resolution plan.
However, the exact amount of claim in favour of the group Company cannot be ascertained as
at the date of the Balance Sheet. In view of this, the group Company has not accounted for any
Interest Income on this loan for the year under audit.

4. Attention is invited to note no. 61 where 6 group Companies did not have any Company
Secretary for the year/part of the year as required by the Companies Act, 2013. Out of this, 4
Companies are in the process of appointing a Company Secretary as at the close of the Balance
Sheet date and balance 2 companies have regularized the appointment of Company Secretary
on its rolls subsequent to the respective Company's balance sheet date.

5. Attention is drawn to note no. 50 of financial statements which indicates no major activities in
the business of 3 subsidiary Companies and the uncertainty associated with the same. Further,
these 3 Companies have incurred a net loss during the current year and previous years. These
conditions may cast significant doubt about the respective Company’s ability to continue as a
Going Concern. The financial statements, however, have been prepared using the going
concern basis of accounting, based on the expected growth opportunities as per the future
business plans and the commitment by the holding company to extend financial support to
these companies for meeting the obligations expected to arise in the foreseeable future.

6. Attention is drawn to Note No. 59.2 where due to the outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19)
pandemic globally and in India had caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic
activity. Operations and revenue of 2 group companies, during the year, were impacted due to
COVID-19. The respective Companies have carried out a detailed study to assess the impact of
COVID-19, including the second wave, on its liquidity position and on the recoverability and
carrying values of its assets and has taken into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements, including its assessment of recoverable value of
its assets based on internal and external information upto the date of approval of these audited
Ind AS financial statements and current indicators of future economic conditions. The impact
assessment of COVID 19 is a continuous process given the uncertainties associated with its
nature and duration. The management will continue to monitor material changes to the future
economic conditions which may have an impact on the operations of the group.

7. In continuation to the earlier lockdown and ongoing restrictions for major part of the financial
year announced by the Indian Government to prevent the spread of the virus and subsequent
resumption of services in a phased manner, additional lockdown measures were announced
across certain states during the current financial year. In view of this the entire audit was
carried out online based on remote access of data, as provided by the management, instead of
standard conventional Audit. This resulted in need for carrying out alternative audit
procedures as per the Standards on Auditing prescribed by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). The Audit has been carried out based on the advisory on “Specific
Considerations while conducting Distance Audit/ Remote Audit/ Online Audit under current
Covid-19 situation” issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of I[CAL

We have been represented by the management that the data provided for our audit purposes is
correct, complete, reliable, and are directly generated by the accounting system of the Company
without any further manual modifications. We bring to the attention of the users that the audit
of the financial statements has been performed in the aforesaid conditions.

Our report is not modified in respect of the above matters,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
our audit of the consolidated financial state
addressed in the context of our audit of the ¢
forming our opinion thereon and we do not p
determined the following matter to be the Key

professional judgment, were of most significance in
ments of the current period. These matters were
onsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
rovide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
audit matter to be communicated in our Report.

1. Recognition and measurement of
impairment relating to loans and
advances to  customer invelves
significant management judgement.

As per Ind AS 109 credit loss assessment is
now based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Model and applicable to the Group.

The Impairment Loss provision is computed
based on management estimates including
the historical default and loss ratios.
Management exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss based on
range of factors.

The most significant areas involving
significant measures estimates are:

* Loan Staging criteria

* Calculation of probability of default/loss
given default/Exposure at default

* Consideration of probability weighted
scenarios and forward looking macro-
economic factors.

Ind AS 109 requires an entity to determine
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) amount on a
probability weighted basis. There is a large
increase in the data inputs required for the
computation of ECL. This increases the risk
of completeness and accuracy of the data
that has been used as a basis of significant
assumptions in the model.

L

appropriateness of the Group's accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets and
assessing compliance with Ind AS 109.

* Understood Group’s new processes, systems
and controls implemented relating to
impairment allowance process including
governance controls over the development
and implementation of the ECL model;

* Test checked the design and implementation
of key internal financial controls over loan
impairment process used to calculate the
impairment charge and test checked
management review controls over
measurement of impairment allowances and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Evaluated appropriateness of the Impairment
principles based on the requirements of Ind
AS 109  considering our  business
understanding and industry practice.

* Performed substantive procedures over
validating completeness and accuracy of the
data and reasonableness of assumptions used
in the model;

* Broadly evaluated management’s judgement
in the determination of ECL;

Performed cut off procedures on a sample basis
relating to recoveries at year end that would
impact staging of financial assets.

i Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response )
Subjective Estimate Our Audit procedures included considering the
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Information Other than the Consolidated Ind AS financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include
the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Slatements. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material missta tement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the Consolidated

Ind AS Financial Statements

The Helding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act, with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other Comprehensive
Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounling
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, Holding Company’s Board of Director
is responsible for assessing the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
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Statements. As a part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the Audit.

We also:

* Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis o f our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisls, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

s  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
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We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matters

We did not audit the Financial statements of three subsidiary companies whose Financial
Statements reflects total assets of Rs. 93844 thousands, total revenues of Rs. 13222 thousands and
net cash inflow of Rs. 22292 thousands for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, which has been audited by other auditors, which financial
statements, other financial information and auditor’s report has been furnished to us by the
Management. Further, financial statements of 2 LLPs whose Financial Statements reflects total
assets of Rs. 165324 thousands, total revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash inflow of Rs. 200 thousands
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements have not
been audited and furnished to us by the management and we have relied on Financial statements of
LLPs as certified by management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the said entities, and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid entities are
based on the report of such other auditors and the management certified financial statements.

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our
audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors and the management certified
financials on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the companies
incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reporl of the other
auditors;

¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Consolidated other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts.

d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, in our opinion the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind - AS) specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors ©f the holding
Company as on 315t March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under
Section 139 of the Act, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st Maxch, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Group’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 2021 been
paid/provided by the Group to its directors is in accordance with the provision of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements;

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
consolidated financial position as at 315t March 2022;

ii. The Group does not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts
requiring provision for material foreseeable losses;

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in India whose financials statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
by or on behalf of the respective Holding or any of such subsidiaries or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in India whose financials statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any personsor
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or investin other persons or entities

o
Bay )iz
ok
B &
\-{yf'%ﬁ\ ‘.‘{'ﬁ@}//



S M M PlgiCompany

-harlaraed Acoo

identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like om behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or
other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-
statement.

v. The Holding company or its subsidiaries had neither declared any dividend in the
previous year nor paid any dividend during the current year.

For SM M P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120438W

Partner
Membership No. - 166729
UDIN No. 22166729BEGUHO4114

Mumbai, dated September 30, 2022



S M M PlgiCompany

Charlered A

Annexure 1 to the Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report

of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and given by the company and the books
and records examined by us in the normal course of Audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief and on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, we state that:

XX1.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated
financial statements except the following:

As per Para iii of the Order, in case of 7 subsidiaries, the recovery of interest and principal
in respect of the loans granted/continued from the earlier years was not as stipulated.
Out of a total loans granted/continued from earlier years amounting of 733,440
thousands, principal amount aggregating to Rs. 636,440 thousands was overdue. The
current year’s interest aggregating to Rs. 40,134 thousands was waived and hence there
was no overdue interest for more than 90 days as at the Balance Sheet date

As per Para xvi of the Order, the group has more than one Core Investment Company (CIC)
within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016). On our examination of records provided by the Holding Company, there are a total of
14 CIC (including CICs exempt from registration) in the group.

For S MM P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. -120438W

et

Chintan Shah

Partner

Membership No. 166729

UDIN No. 22166729BEGUHO4114

Mumbai, September 30, 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statement

(Referred to paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requuirements’

section of our report to the members of Yes Capital (India) Private Limited of even date)

Independent Auditors Report on_the Internal Financial Controls under Sectiomn 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Yes Capital (India)
Private Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) as of 31t March, 2022 in conjunc tion with our
audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial Statements of the Company comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 315t 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the period then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls :

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Group’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those
standards and the Guidance Note that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriater to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting :

A Group’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Group;

(2} Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Group; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial ¢ Controls over Financial Reporting :

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion :

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Group has, in all

material respects, established an adequate internal financial controls system over financial

reporting on criteria based on or considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31st 2022,

For S MM P & Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 120438W

Chintan Shah

Partner

Membership No. - 166729

UDIN No. 22166729BEGUHO4114

Mumbai, dated September 30, 2022



Yes Capital {India) Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31st March 2022 315t March 2021

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,97,248 3,10370
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 2,87,949 1,92,244
Receivable
-Trade receivables ) - -
Loans 6 32,93,996 42,52,823
Investments 7 8,26,072 2,11,010
Other financial assets 8 54,414 50,360
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net} 17,190 6,620
Deferred tax assets {Net) 15 67,844 82,748
Property, plant and equipment 9 19,908 33,536
Right-of-use assets g 10,762 22,375
Goodwill on Consolidation 2,03,653 2,03,653
Other intangible assets 9 7,404 13,829
Other non-financial assets 10 36,539 51,100
TOTAL ASSETS 50,22,980 54,30,668
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables

{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises a3 137

{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 3,418 4,840

enterprises and small enterprises
Minority Interest 1 1
Debt securities 11 . .
Borrowings (Other than debt securities} 12 5,17,164 16,58,914
Other financial liabilities 13 2,35.926 147,936
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net) 2,418 5,292
Provisions 14 1,680 (289}
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 - -
Other non-financial liabilities 16 41,803 21,602
Equity
Equity share capital 17 23,804 23,804
Other equity 18 37,96,714 35,638,413
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUNTY 50,22,980 54,30,668
The accompanying notes from 1 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
This is the Consolidated Balance sheet referred to in our report of even date
For S M M P & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Yes Capital (India} Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 120438W

RTonden )

Chintan Shah Raakhe Kapoor Tandon  Roshifi ispoor
Partner Director Director
Membership No, 166729 DIN: 00601988 DIN: 05167806
UDIN No

Place : London
Date :

Place : Mumbai
Date : 3O\ U —

Place : Mumbai
Date:



Yes Capital (India) Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 315t March 2022
(All amoun ts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Revenue from operations
Interest income 19 4,42,929 6,47,036
Dividend income -
Net gain on fair value changes 20 13,958 8,289
Total revensue from operations 4,56,887 6,55,325
Other incorne 21 2,27,620 27,706
Total income 6,84,508 6,83,031
Expenses
finance cost 22 30,607 1,12,945
Impairment on financial instruments 23 24,767 77,023
Employee benefit expense 24 1,80,475 2,48,531
Depreciation and amortization expense 9 33,949 56,316
Other expenses 25 1,19,465 1,01,195
Total expenses 3,89,263 5,96,010
Loss before tax 2,95,245 87,021
Tax expense -

Current tax 55,225 62,223

Deferred tax 14,704 (25,138}

Short provision of earlier years {1,246) 65
Profit/Loss after tax {a) 2,26,562 49,871
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Changes in fair values of equity instruments through OCl {3) (20,397)

Loss on sale of equity instrument measured at FYTOCI - 3,812

Re-measurement gain/{loss) on defined employee benefit plans 819 3,369

Less : Income tax effect on above {200) {5,198)
Total other comprehensive income (b} 617 {18,414)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (a) +{b) 2,27,178 31,457
Earnings per share 26

Basic & diuted 0.10 0.02

The accom panying notes from 1 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
This is the Consolidated Statement of prafit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For $M M P & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Yes Capital {India) Private Limited

firm Registration No. 120438W
Raakhe Kapoor Tandon Roshfm%r/

.

Chintan Shah

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 166729 DIN: 00&01988 DIN: 05167806
UDIN N,

Flace : Murybaj
Date: 20 |1 "

Place : Mumbai




Yes Capital {India) Private Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profitfi{Loss) before tax 2,95,245 87,021
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 33,949 56,316
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 313) 192
Interest income [4,42,929) {6,47,036)
Gain on disposal of long-term investments - -
Liability no longer required, written back {448} (13,962)
Finance costs 27,648 1,08,686
Loss on sale of Shares carried at fair value through OCI - 3,812
Changes in fair values of equity instruments through OCI {3} {20,397)
Transfer to retained earnings on refund of secu rity deposits - -
Share based payments 1,168 2,413
Reversal of retained earnings - -
Cash generated from operations before working capital change (85,683) {4,22,954)
Adjustments for working capital changes
[Increase) / decrease in loans 9,58,827 10,95,419
{Increase} / decrease in other financial assets {4,054) 43,277
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables . 3,494
{increase) / decrease in other non-Financial assets 14,561 26,178
{Increase) / decrease in goadwill - -
Increase / {decrease) in minority interest 1 -
Increase / {decrease) in provisions 2,798 {2,261}
Increase / {decrease) in trade and other payables 1,07,124 {1,09,812)
Cash generated from operation 9,93,574 6,33,341
Income-taxes paid {67,425) (52,355)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 9,265,149 5,80,987
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {2,626} {1,086)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 656 15,069
Sale of rights of use assets - 38,473
Purchase of long-term investments {6,15,062) -
Proceeds from sale of investments - 2,54,191
Interest received 4,42,529 6,47,036
Net cash flow generated from/{used in) Investing activities (B) {1,74,103) 9,53,682
€. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings{Net} {7,41,814} {15,70,052)
Interest paid {27,648) [1,08,686)
Net cash flow {used in)/generated from financing activities (C) (7,69,462) (16,78,738)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {17,415} {1,44,069)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,02,614 6,46,683
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,85,198 5,02,614
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
in cuirent accounts 4,83,229 501,376
Cash on hand 1,969 1,237
4,85,198 5,02,614
] ]

The accompanying notes from 1 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For S MM P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 120438wW

- -

Chintan Shah

Partner

Membership No. 166729
UDIN No.

Place : Mumbai

Date :lolq ( Ay

Place : London =

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Yes Capital {India) Private Limited

MTandan

Raakhe Kapoor Tandon
Directar
DIN: 00601988

RW

Director
DIN; 05167806
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2(a)

2{b}

Yes Capital {India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the lidated financlal stat ts for the year anded 315t March 2022
{AN amaunts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Company cverview

Yes Capital [india) Private Limited was incorporated on Ath May 2003 as Private Limited Company under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. The Comparty is Non-deposit taking systemically importance care lavestment Company ("CIC-ND-5I") registerad with the RBI vide
centificate No, N-13.02253 dated 05th June 2018 The Campany atong-with its subsidiaries (referred to as “the Group™ is engaged in varied
business activities comprising of making investments, providing long-term finance to individuals, companies, corparations, socities or
assotigtion of persoas for purchaselcanstruction/repair and renovation of new/exisiting flats/houses for residential purposes and pravide
property refated services,

The following is list of its subsidianies.:

Particulars % Holding
ART Aifardable Housing Finance {India) Limited 100.00%
ART ARC [india) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Business & Consumer Finance [India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Capital (India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Czpital Advisory {india) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Climate Finance {India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Corporate Finance [india) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Distriburtion {India) Prvate Limited 100.00%
ART Fin Cornbinator Advisors LLP 99.01%
ART Finance {India] Private Limited 100.00%
ART Financiat Services {India) Private Umited 100.00%
ART Fintech (India) Private Limited 100 00%
ART I-Combinator Advisors LLP 99.00%
ART India Foundation 100.00%
ART insurance Ventures {India} LLP 99.97%
ART Insurance Ventures [India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART P2P Services {India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Real Assets Finance {India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Special Situations Finance [India] Limited 100.00%
ART Venture Finance {India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Wealth Managernent {India) Private Limited 100.00%
Brandcanvas Wall Art Private Limited 100.00%
Himalaya Finlease Private Limited 100.005%
Ind Global Securities Limited 100.00%
Basis of preparation of lidated fi ial

The Company has prepared its consclidated financial statements to comply in all material respects with the pravisions of Companies Act,
2013 {"the Act"} and rules framed thsreunder, In accordance with the notification issved by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company
has adopted Indian Ac¢eunting Standards {Ind AS} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 under Section
133 of the Act, with effect from 15t April 2018. Till 31st March 2019, the Company used to p its ¢ fidated financial st as
per Companies [Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 {Previous GAAP) read with rule 7 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The lidated financial st have been prepared on a historical tost convention and aceraat basis, except for the financial assets
and Kabilities that are measured at fair value

Princigle of Consolidation

The Group consolidates all entities which are controlled by it. The Group established canteof when it has Power aver the entity, is exposed,
or has rights, to variables, returns from its involvements, with the entity and has the ability to affect the entity's return by using power over
the entity

The Ci ltdated Fi fal § have been prepared on the following basis:

Entities controlled by the company are cansolidated from the date the control cemmernces until the date the control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consoidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as of the Holding
Company |.e. year ended 31st March, 2021

The financial statements of the Molding Company and its subs diary companiei have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The intra- group balances, intra group transactions and unrealised profits
have been fully elim:nated.

The extess of cost to the Company of its i 5 in the Yy companies aver its share of equity of the subsidiary companies, at
the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary are made, is recognised 44 “Goodwill” being an asset in the consolidated financiai
statements. Goodwil arising out of consolidation is nat amortised. However, the tame is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet date.
Alternatively, where the share of equity in the subsidiary companies a5 on the date of the investment is in excess of cost of investment of
tha Company, it is recognisad as “Capital Reserve on consedidation” and shown under the head “Other £quity”™, in the consolidated financial
statements

Non-contralling interests in the net assets of subsidianes cansists of:

{i) The 2mount of equity attributable to the minorities at the date on which investment in subsidiary is made and;

{i#) The minarities share of movernents in equity since the date the parent-subsidiary relationship came into existence.

The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate i an entity in which the Graup has significant influence, but not contral ar ieint control, over the financial and operating
pelicies. A joint venture i an arrangement, rather than right of its assets and obligation for its liabilities. Interests in associates and joing
ventures are accounted for using the equity methed. They are initially recognised at cost which includes transaction cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the consoldated financial statements include the Group's share of profit or loss and sther comprehensive income of
equity accounted investees until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases

Changes in the Company interest in subsidiaries that do Aot result in 2 Joss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The tarrying
amount of the Company’s interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relatives in the subsidiaries,
Any difference between the amount by whith the nan contrglling interest are adjusted & the fair value of the consideration paid or recaived
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owner of the Company.
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3.2

3.3

Yes Capital (indta) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the lidated fl fal for the year ended 313t March 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwlse stated)

Significant accounting policies

Slgnificant g jud i and !

The prepacation of consolidated financial statements in canformity with ind AS which requires rmanagement 10 make estimates,
ions and exercise judgs im applying the actounting policies that atfect the reperted amount of assets, fiabilities and disclosure

of contingent liabilities at the date of consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year

The Management believes that these #stimates are prudent and reasonable and are based vpon the Management’s best knowledge of

current events and actions. Actual resuits could differ from these estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are

recognised in the periods in which the results are known or materialised

Following are the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more iikely to be materialy
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning gut to bt different than those originally assessed.

I} Property, plant and equip t and ) glble Assets: M M reviews the estimated usefu lives and residual values of the assets

lly in order to d ine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residuat values
as per schedule )| of the Companies Act, 213 or are based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological chinges, whichever it more appropriate.

ii} Income Tax; The Group reviews at eachconsalidated balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax kab litezs, The factors used
in estimates may differ fram actual outcome which could lead to an adjustment 1o the amounts ! d in the comgglidated fi ial
statements.

1) Contingencles: Group has estimated the passible sutflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting finangial year, if any, in
respect of contingencies/claims/litigations against the Greiup as [t is not possible to predict the autcome of pending matters with acturacy.

) Impairment of financial assets; The impairment grovisions for financial assets are based an assumptions about risk of default and
expected cash loss. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment cakulation, based
on Company's past history, existing market condit.ons a5 well as forward logking estimates at the end of each reparting pericd.

w} Impairment of non-financlal assets: The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an ndication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annwa’ impairment testing for an asset is required, the Growp estimates the asset's recovesable
amount. An asset’s recovecable amaunt is the higher of an asset's gr Cash Generating Units [CGL) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. It s determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does nat generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those
from ather assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an aiiet or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down 10 its recoverable amount.

In assessing valug ir use, the estimatad future cash flows are discounted to their present value using & pre-tax discount rabe that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determ ning fair value less cost of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions £an be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Theie
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

vi} Defined benefit obligation: The cost of post-employment benefits is determined using actuarial valyations. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the tong term nature of these plans
such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 's probabile that the economic benefits wilt flow 16 the Group and the revenua can be re rably
measured, regardless of when the payeent is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considesation received o
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties colfected gn behalf of the government.

Other Income

interest wome from financial instrument is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate & the rate that
exactly discounts estimated futyre cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the Brois Carrying amount of 3 financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Groug estimates the expected cash flows by consi dering all the ¢omtractual terms of
the finangial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and sirilar opticns} but does not cansider the expected credit losses.
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Yes Capltal {india) Private timited
Notes forming part of the i dfl fal for the year ended 315t March 2022
(£1] [n INR th unless otherwise stated)

Praperty, plant and equipment
Property, ptant and equipment is stated at <ost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost dirgctly
atwvibutable to acquisition are capitalised until the Property, plant and equipment’s are ready to use, as intended by the rmanagement,
Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method {'SLM'} on the basis of useful life prescribed under the Schedule i of the Compariet
Act, 2013, which is in line with the management estimate of useful ife of property plant and equipments.

Subsequent expenditures relating ta propenty, plant and equipment are capitalized only when it is prabable that future ecanamic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized in net grafit in the cansolidated Statement of Profit and Lass when incurred. The ¢ost aad re ated accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the ¢ lidated finantial S upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized
in the consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value
less cost to sell.

Financlal instruments

Initlal recognitlon

Financial assets and financiat liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisiens of the instruments,
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attsibutable to the acquisition
or issue of finantial assets and financial Fabilities {other than financial sssets and financial liabifities at fai value through profit or loss] are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or linancial liabilities, as appropriste, on wnitial recagnition. Trantaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or fnancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss arq recognised immediately
n profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Non-di fl ial instr

(i} Financial assats carried at amertized cost ;
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent iolely payments of grincipal and interest are
measured at amortised cost.

(i1} inancial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash llows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive Incame (FYTOCH, Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OC, except for the recognition of impairment gains ar losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange Bains and
lasses which are recognised in profic and toss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumislative gain or loss previsusly recognised in
OCtis reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ {losses), Interest income from these finane'al assets is included
in other incoma using the effective interest rate method.

[il}) Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYTOCH are measured at fair value thraugh profit ar bass. A gain or loss o a dekt
investment that & subseguently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relatio=ship is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss within other gaini/{tosses} in the period 'n which it arries.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

{v] Equity instruments

Where the Group’s management has elacted 1o present fair value 830t and leses on equity nvestments in ather comprehensive income,
there is o subsequent raclassification of fair value gains and lasies to profit or lass. Dividends from such investments are recogrised in
profit or lass when the Group's right to receive payments is establshed.

[v) FInancial liabifities
Pebt and equity instruments isswed by the Group are classified as either financial iabllities or ai equity in & with the sul e of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial | ability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as ar FYTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent agtounting periods. The carrying amounts of financal Esbilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
deterrnined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a methad of calculating the amortised cast of a financial liabi ity and of allocating interest expanse gver the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees paid or
received that farm an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discountsh through the expected
life of the financial liability, or {where appropriate] a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditiona! right to defer settlement of the fiabiliey for at least 12
maonths after the reporting period.




Yes Capital [India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the lid financial st for the year ended 31st March 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwlse stated)

Der of fi | instr

I} Financial assets

A financizl asset is derecognized only when

a) the rights to recewve cash flows from the financial asset s transferred or

b} retains the contractual rights ta receivee the cash flows of the finantial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the tash flaws
to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is trassferred then in that case financial asset 5 derecognized enly if substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity has not transferred substantiaily all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

) Financial liabillties

A financial iability is derecogrized when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled or expires_ When an existing financia

iabrlity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially diffarent terms, or the terms of an existing liabdlity are substant ally
maodified, such an exchange or modification is treated 25 the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
differenice in the raspective carrying amounts is recognized 'n the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as finance casts.

Offsetting financial Instruments

Finanial assets and Fabilities are offset and the met amount s reported n the consolidated balance sheet where there is 3 legally
enforieable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to sattle on 2 net basis or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enfarceable in the nermal course
of business and in the event of default. insolventy or bankruptey of the Group or the coumerparty.

Impairment of Assets

a. Financlal assets

The Group recognizes luss allowarices using the expected credit loss ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss. For all other financial assets, ECLs are measured 2t an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
nerease in credit risk from initial recognition In which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs {or reversal) that is
required to adjust the loss allowarnce at the reporting date to the amount that ls required to be racognized is recognized as an impairment
gain or lass in cosolidated profit o« Joss

B. Non-financial assets
The Group 3ssesses at each conualidated balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows fram continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets, s considered as 3 cash g ing unit. If any such Indicaton existi,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value Jess costs of disposa
and valug in use. If such recoverable ameurt of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unil to which the asset belongs
is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss
and is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the consalidated balance sheet date there is an Indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreased, the recoverable amgunt is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount.
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¥es Capital {Indla) Private Limited
Motes forming part of the lidated fi ial for the year ended 31st March 2022
[Allamounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Pravislons and contingent liabilitles

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying ic benefits will be required to settle the obhgation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisians are discounted using equivalent period government
securities interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the C idated S1atement of Profit and toss 35 a finance cost.
Pravisions are reviewed at each consolidated balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has 2 present cbiigation {legal or constructive] as a result of 3 past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period government
securities interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost.
Pravisions are reviewed at each ¢onsolidated kalance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Group by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Group By the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
equity share and alse the weighted average aumber of equity shares that could have been ssued upon conversion of all dilutive potentia
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares & deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, untess issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially diutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues inctuding for changes effected prior to the approval of the consolidated financal statements by the Board of
Directors.

Taxes onincome
Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the detesmination of the net profit or loss for the
period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 1o the tax autharities in accordance with the In¢gme Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised on temparary differances between the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities in the separate consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding Lx bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences ta
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avaitable against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recogmesed if the temporary difference arises fram the initial recognikian {other than in 4 business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying ameunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced (o the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits wii be available to allow alf or part of the asset to be recovered. Defarred tax liabilities and assets
are measured 31 the tax rates that are expected te agply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recogmised in profit or loss, except when they relate 10 items that are recognised in ather comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which fase, the current and deferred tax are alio recognsed in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively, Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial acrounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
‘ncfuded in the accounting for the business combinatian.
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Yes Capital (India} Private Limited
Motes forming part of the lidated fii lal for the year ended 31st March 2022
{All amounts In INR thousands, unless otherwlse statad)

Employee Benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, inciuding non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 manths after the end of
the peried in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reparting perod and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the fiabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current empioyee benefit obligati nthec lid, balznce sheet.

Post-employment obligations

Defined Benefit Plan

The Eability 'n the consoidated batince sheet in respect of defined bhenefit gratuity plasi it the present value of the defined benefit
obhigation at the end of the reporting perod. The defined benefit obigation is caiculated annually by astuaries using the projected unit
credit method.

The present vatue of the defined benefit abligation denominated in INR 4 detérmined by discounting the estimated future cash cutflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. The net interest cost is talcuated by applying the distount rate to the ret balance of the defined benefit obilgation. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the censolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, changes in actuaria' assumptions asd seturn on plan assets
[extluding interest income] are recognised in the periad «n which they eccur, directly in othar comprehensive incame. They are ingluded in
retained earnings in the ¢onsglidated statement of changes \n equity and in theconsotidated balance sheet. Cha nges in the present value of
the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtslments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Iy the consolidated cash flow ¢ash and cash equivalents includes casi on hand, demand depotits with banks, other short-term
highiy liquid investments with griginal maturities of three months or less that are readily toavertible to known ameunts of cash and which
are subjest wo an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank averdrafts are shown within borrowings in ¢urrent
liabilites in the conselidated balance sheet
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Yes Capital {india) Private Limited
MNotes forming part of the consolidated financial stataments for the year ended 314t March 2012
{AT amounts ir INR thousands, unless otherwise stated]

AS a1 As at
31st March 2022 315t March 2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1,965 1,337
Otner balances

Beposits with ariginal matur.ty of mare than 3 moenths less than 17 mentas 21,020 70
Balances with banks

In current atcaunt 174,259 257,463

Deaasits with oiginal matanity 6f less than 3 —antas - 11,500

197,248 3,10,370

Past the Balance Sheet date, 3 sum of Rs 38,362 tnowsands has peen praviiienaly attached by Enfascement Directorate on May 5. 2020 in connect on v i tne
ongoing litigation in the matter o promater grewp The Company nas fled an applcat.on wih the Adjudicating Author'ty of Enforcement ilirectorate , Mew Del

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Trade receivables
Considered good - ungstyred® 2378
Less : Provision for doubtful debts {2328

* The credit period genera'ly ranges from 15 to 30 days.

Mo trade or otner receivables are due from d rectors or atner oFicers of the Company mitner severaky or jointly with any otner pericn. Trade rece'vadbles ai gn 31
Miarch 2022. 2,538 thousandsis due from firms ar private campan'es respecl.vely :nwhich any directo- 's a partner or a drreclar or a membir

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Loans
{A) At amortised cost
Leanto related oarties 16,50.030
Leans to Individuals 3128632 4082, 750
Loanto others 11,18.285 492,957
Securty deposit 18 18
Total {A] - Gross 35,86,905 45,175,735
tess - allowance for Impairment lass (3.02.9081 43.22,912
Total (A} - Met 32,93,996 42,52,82)
(Bl (i) Secured by tangicie assets 3121958

{ii} Secured by ntangible assets

{iii) Covered by bank/government guarantees

[iv} Unsecured 4,084,807 45,75, 734
Total (B} - Gross 35,96,905 45,75.73%
Less - Allowance for Impairment lost {1 0, 908) [3,15.913)
Total (8] - Net 32,93,996 4252822
(€) () Loans in india

Puble sectar
Otners, 35,96,905 45, 75735

Total {C} - Gross 35,96,505 45,75,735
Less - Altowance for Jmpairment foss 13.02,908) {3258 F
Tokal {CH)} - Net 32,93.996 A252822
{C} (M) Loans outside India

Ledd : Allowanee far Impaicment loss
Total {C}{1I) - Net

Total (C){1} and {C)() 32,93.996 4252 822
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Yes Capital {India} Private Limited

ed financial st for the year ended 315t March 2023

Notes forming part of the lid:

{All 3maunts In INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Other fimancial assats

Interest ac¢rued on loans ta related parten
Interest acgrued but not due on ‘aans
Securty Deposits

Advance for investment In mutua! fund
Interest acsrued on loani to others
Recoveratle to related parties

Advance recoverable fram gzoup companes
Retoverable from others

Unbiled revenue

Balance with gavernment auther Lied
Prepayments

Interest accrued on fixed depasits

Exgratia interest Refund

EIS Recefvable

Impairment Lass ATowance

As at As at
315t March 2022 31st Mareh 2021
@611
135 a
156} 151
17138 19
13 -
8913 4028
9.0a7
21,619
{4.523)
54 414 50,360
LI
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Yes Capital (india) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the | financial

[All amaunts In INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Qther non-financial assets

Otner Advances

Advance to Supplers

Atquired propernies (held for salei
Balange with gavernment autharities
Prepayments

Less: Provision for expected credit losi

for the year ended 31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2022

As at
315t March 2021

——— et et VA AL

LR 3,058
a9 304
71143 1250
14 340 42,953
4,400 4,267
18.287) {771
36,539 51,100
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Yes Capital {India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated @ 1

[AF amounts in INR thoysands, unless otherwise stated)

Borrowings [Other than debt securities)
At Amortised Cost
Secured
Term Loans
Fram National Hausing Bank {NHB}
From Banks

Cash Credit from Banks
Unsecured - at amortised cost

Inter-corporate deposits
Laan from body carporate

Borrawingsin Inda
Borrowings oulside Inda

Notes:

for the year ended 313t March 2022

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
193743 ER
L .
L1540l JERGE 3
317,164 16,58 914
AT 64
917,164 16,58 914

Securad term |oans from Banks is towards loan from State Bank of Ind'a and carry rate of nterest of 9.50% p.a. The 'ean is hav ng tenure of 7 years from tne @ate of
disoursement and dre repayable in 20 quarterly insta'ments after a moratorium of 24 montas, tha repayment cammences ‘rom Decemper 31, 2019 These aans are
secured oy hypathecation {exclusive charge! of the loans given by tae Campany.

The interest rate for the afarementioned term lcans ace inked ta the Marginal Cost of Fund Based Lending Rate {MCLR] of the respective leaders

Other barrawings are towards the shart term Inter-corparate deaosits and are repayable as dulet sayment and end of term of Inter-coraarate desast. These Inter-
Zarporate deposits are unsecured.
Particulars Terms of répayment Effective Principal Princigal
Interest rate Outstanding as at Dutstangding as at
3135t March 2022 315t March 2021
Unsecured loan from refated pan.es Revavable on 60 manin 6100 11 55% 717400 1304880

iram date of
disbursement
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Yes Capital {Indla) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the lidated fl | for the year ended 3118 March 2022
{Al amounts in INR thousands, unless othenwise stated)

Qther financial liabilities

Interest accrued bBut Aot due an barrowingi
Lease Doligation {t7abitity)

Other Labilites

Payables 10 related parties

Statutory dues

Expenses payable

Emplgyee related Fabilites

Provislons
For Employee benefits:
-Gratuty
ECL on unditbursed laan comentement

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI

Deferred tax lisbilities {gross)
Uarealsed ga i1 equity instruments recagnised at FvT0C

{2l
Deferred tax related to [tems recognised in statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax |labilities (gross)
Ceher temporary differences
Unsgalsed gain an units of mutual fund recogmsed ar FYTPL
Dfterance m writlen down value of property, plant and egJ oried 41 g books of account and 1ax ‘aws
Lo}
Deferred tax assets (gross}
Qther temparary differences.
Uareal'sed gain on uniti af mutual fund recogaised at FYTPL
Impaement on Financut Instnumeats (K1)
Expenses an whith non complance of w thhald'ng tax
Difference in written down value of Property, plaat & equipment as per boaxs o arco st and tax 3w
Provision for gratuity
Unused tax credid {MAT)
Contingency provision an standard loan assets
Provision for doubtful toans & advances
Lossed ava“able for offseting against future taxale ‘ncame

(e}
{d} = {b}<)

Deferred tax liabilities {net}

Other non-financlat llabillties
Advanga from tuttomers
Statutory duet

Asat As at
31st March 2022 313t March 2021
187,360 98,453
12,512 21,820
21656 12,704
1.955 ?
T84 248
11,729 14,704
235926 147936
==L
As at As at
31st March 2022 318t March 2021
{2200 1289
1909
1530 1283
As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
354
- 954
==
32.808
1578 a5
{7351 5
27,015 450
58.104 3084
36.364
- ]
3 A0
5 447
15
3144
44 005
446 44§
94,919 84,152
(67,844) (83,702)
[67,844) 52,748
As at As at
31t Maech 2022 31st March 2021
6548 17,413
14,855 4. 183
41 803 21,602




Yes Capital {India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

{All am ounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
17 Equity share capital
17A  Authorised share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each
At 1st April 2020

Increase during the year

At 31st March 2021
Increase during the year

At 31st March 2022

178 Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

At 1st April 2020
Increase during the year
At 31st March 2021
Increase during the year
At 31st March 2022

17C  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Com pany has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of INR 10
The Com pany declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation of the Comp
remaining asset of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will

shareholders.

17D Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the company

any,

Number of Shares Amount
15,00,000 25,000
25,00,00(; 25,000-
25,00,000- 25,000

Number of Shares Amount
23,80,381 23,804
23,80,381- 23,804-
23,80,381: 23,804

each. every holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per shari.
the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive any of the
bte in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

Name of Shareholder As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st April 2021

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
Mrs. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon 7,893,461 33.34% 7,93, 461 33.34%
Mrs, Radha Kapoor Khanna 7.93,460 33.33% 7.93,460 33.33%
Ms. Roshini Kapoor 7,93,460 33.33% 7,93,460 33.33%

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

17 Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash and bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balace sheet date

Particulars Financial year MNo of shares
Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up share of Rs. 10 at premium of Rs. 266 pursuant to acquisiiton of equity shares of 2017-18 12,75,381
subsidiary which were held by minority share holders.
17F  The details of Shareholding of Promoters are as under :-
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year No. of Shares % of total Shares % Change during the | % Change during
current year previous year

Promoter Name

Mrs. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon 7,93,461 33% -

Mrs. Rad ha Kapoor Khanna 7,93,460 33%, .

Ms. Roshini Kapoor 7,93,460 33% -

Total 23,80,381 100% - &5
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Yes Capital {india) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolid.
[All amounts In INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Other equity

FVTQCI - Equity instruments.

At 31st March 2020

Changes in fair value of FVTOC| equity instruments {net of tax]
Loss on sale of equity instrument measured at FYTOC! [net of tax}
Transfer to retained earning on sale of equity instruments

A¢ 315t March 2021

Changes in fair value of FYTOCI equity mstruments {net of tax|
Loss on iale of equity instrument measured at FYTOC! {net of tax)
Transfer 1o retained earning an sale of equity instruments

At 315t March 2022

Statutory rasecrve ufs 29C of The NHB Act, 1987

for the year anded 31st March 2022

At 31st March 2020 16,823
Transber from turrent year profit

At 315t March 2021 16,823
Transfer from current year profit 8,305
At 315t March 2022 25,128
Spacial Reserve u/fs 36(i){vill) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

At 31st March 2020 48,406
Transfer from turrent year profig 39,955
At 315t March 2021 88,361
Transfer from current year prafit 28,475
At 313t March 2022 116836
Statutory Reserve Fund

At 315t March 2020 12,255
Transfer during the yeas -
At 31st March 2021 12,255
Transfer during the year 4,311
At 31st March 2012 IGESSG
Capital Reserve

At 31st March 2020 2,478
Transfer during the year -
At 315t March 2021 4,478
Transfer during the year -
At 31st March 2022 4i47l
Share Based payment reserve

At 315t March 2020 6.672
Premium on issue of equity shares during the yea: ak 2,413
At 31st March 2021 9,085
Premium on issue of equity shares during the year 1,168
At 315t March 2022 10,254
Securities premium

At 31st March 2020 3,393,251
Premium an issue of equity shares during the year

At 315t March 2021 3,39,251
Pramium on isswe of equity shares during the year -
At 315t March 2022 3 39‘251
Retained earnings

At 31st March 2020 30,93,496
Profit for the year 49,871
Transfer to special reserve u/fs 36(1})(viii) of the income Tax Act, 1961 {39,955
Re-measurement gain/{ioss) on defined employee benefit plans {net of tax) 2,569
At 31st March 2021 31,05,981
Transfer from Retained Earning 1o Special Reserve Lifs 451C

profit/Loss for the year 2,26,561
Teansler to special reserve ufs 36{1}){viil) of the income Tax Ast, 1961 {29,466)
Change in accounting policy/prior period adjustments (B4
Transfer from Lease Equalisation reserve -
Remeasurement on account on security deposits written aff -
Re-meaturement gain/(loss] o defined employee benefit plans {net of tax} 619
Less: Transfer to statutory fund (11.625)
Transfer fram FYTOCE reserve on sale of equity instruments

At 315t March 2022 32,92.006
Total other equity

At 3151 March 2021 35,68,433
At 31st March 2022 37,96,714
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Yes Capital {India) Private Limitad
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 20:22
[All amounts In INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Interest Income

On fi 1 assets d at Ised cosis
Interest Income an loan to body corparate
Interest on Loany
On loan Lo related parties
Interest on deposits witn bankt
Other fee intome and charges

Net galn/{loss} on falr value changes
Net Gain/ {Loss) en financial Instruments at Fair value thraugh profit ar loss
On tiad'ng partfakio
Insesiments in Mutual funds
fnveitment in Equits sharet

Other Income
Interest Income an ncome tax refund
Inlerest Incorme on ‘ixed deaasit with banks
©n financial instryment carried at a=oetsad el
Sae of services
Miscellaneous Income
Sale of fixed assets
Gain on financial instruments clasiif ed at FY™FL
Unrealsed Gain on Assigned Laans
Interest Income an secur ly deposit
Reversal of Contingenty provision an ttandard '9an askéti
LiabiLties no longer reqaired written back

Finance cost

©n financial Habilities measured at amartlsed cost
Interest on sarrawings
Interast on Lease Lab ity
Interest on debt securites

Bank Chargas

Interest exoense on statutory dues

Interest expense on Fixed Deposit

Ancliary barrowing cost of debentares

Impairment on financial Instruments

On financlal instruments measured at Amortised cost
Loans

On Other Rezeivab'es - Expected Creds Lois

Loans, advaniei and other receivab a4 wr itan of

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
12.546
4,20,643 B 1467%
(0

5919 11529
16.367 8.282
442929 6,47 036

For the year ended For the year ended

31st Marech 2022

315t March 2021

——— T VAR suaL

11,958 8283
13958 £,289
ST
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 315t March 2021
L1'g 134
329 4,330
1,76 587
13,806
574
2.50¢
&3]
448 13.962
2,27,620 27 706
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
2t 106, FRA
1351
] 9
104 4750
30,607 1,12 945
For the year ended For the year enced
31st March 2022 15t March 2021
19,525
3,148
1.954

24,767
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Yes Capital (indla) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the lidated financlal

(All amounts In INR thousands, unless otherwiss stated)

Employee benefit expense
Salaries, wages & bonus
Contribut'on ta arovident fund
Gratuity

$hare based payments to emplayees
Other welfara expenses

Other expenses

Rent, taxes and energy costs

PMS axpenses

Kembership & Subscriot'en Charges

ROC Filing Fees

Repairs and maintenance

Communicaton costs

Printing and statanery

Auditar's fees and expenses

Legal and Profestianal Fees

General Office Expenses

Electricity & Water Charges

Director’s fees, allgwances and expanses

'Loss on disposal of praperty, olant and equipment
Corporate Social Responsiblity expenser
Recruitment Expentes

Contingency provision on standard asset
Insurance

Change in far value of Invesiment

Loss on impairment of investment/ Sha-e of
Travelling Expenses

Reimbursements

GST Reverss! Expenses

Miszellaneous eapenses

Trusteeship fee

Security and housekeening cha-ged
Balance Written off

Provision for Daubtfy!

Business promation

Foreign exchnage gain/ loss

Liabilit'es no longer requited written of®
Priar period expense

Other expenditure

Earnings per share (EPS)

for the year ended 31st March 2022

For the year ended For the year ended
315t March 2022 315t March 2021
169,034 2,32,719
7.019 10,876
1429 1,479
1,158 2413
1.825 1085
1.80.475 248,531
For the year ended Far the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
9,339 17,054
1,158 430
1 28
1,051 1.14¢
2951 4,066
15 ]
2,145 2139
32,570 22.117
13,527 13,068
2811 2661
1570 1,744
3t 197
Q kR Ei]
27
1,344 3,243
32,532
1100} .
6,256 4,327
%1 17
4,416 5418
186
9.722
2,328
1,385 220
189
1.382 7.089
1,19 465 101,195

e amount considered In ascertaining the Graas's 3ITNNES 2er share constitules tne nel ilossh/arof after tax. The number of sha“es used in compuling bats
=aTNings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstand ng during the vea, The number of snares used in comouting diiuted earn NES Ber inarg
COmOrises the weignted average number of sharei considered for derving basic earnings par share and alsa the we ghted average numoer of snares whch could havé

ben issued on canversion af all dilutive patent'al shares.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Net profif{loss) for ca'culation of basic & d.iuted EPS 2.26.562 419,872
Weighted average number of equity shares far ca'culat.ng baiit & diuted EPS 23.80.381 13.80,331
Basic & diluted earnings per share {INR} 0.10 002
Nom'na’ value per equity share [INR) 10 10




Yes Capital {India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

leasing arrangements

Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating leases for the office premises. These lease arrangement has 2 period of 5 years {which has non cancellable
period of 3 years for lessees and 5 years for lessors). The lease is renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also
include escalation clauses. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as ‘Rent’ in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Future minimum rentals payables under non- cancellable operating lease {excluding lease equalisation reserve) are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within one year 60,773 60,773
After one year but not more than five years - .

60,773 60,773

Disclosures as required by Ind AS 116 - Leases in one of the subsidiary are stated below:
Lease liability movement
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance ason 1 April 2021 21,820 80,470
Adjustment on initial application of Ind AS-116 ‘Leases” at April 1, 2021 5
Addition during the year 13,941 .
Interest on Lease Liability 2,851 9,620
Deletion during the year {12,241) (24,042)
Lease rental payment {13,930} (44,227}
Balance as on 31 March 2021 12,442 21,820
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Asset wise depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 13,314 18,902
Interest expense (included in finance cost} 2,851 (1,443)
Expense relating to short-term leases [included in rent expenses) 5,421 3,577
Total 21,585 21,036
Future Lease Cash Outflow for all leased assets:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Not later than one year 11,783 13,604
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,590 10,850
Later than five years - -
Impact of discounting and other adjustments (932} {2,634)
Total 12,442 21,820
Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability as at 31 March 2022:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within 1 Year 11,013 11,513
Within 2 Years 835 10,307
Within 3 Years 594 -
After 3 Years & -
Total 12,442 21,820

/
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Yes Capital (Indla] Private Limited

Notes forming pant of the lidated financial for the year ended 315t March 2022
{All in INR th ds, unless oth stated}

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution plans

The Group's defined contribution plans is prevident fund {in case of fertain empioyees). The conte butions to the provident fund are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year whe4 the ¢ontributions are due. The Group has no abligation, other than the coatribution payable 1o the
provident fund

Gratulty - Post-employment benefit plans

The Group has a defined banefit gratuity plan. Gratay '$ camputed as 15 days salary. for every campleted year of service ar sart thereof in excess of 6 months
and s payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The benell vests on the emplayeer ater caipletion of 5 years of service. The Gratuity Fabilty has not
been externally fundad. Grous makes provision of such gratuity liaisty in the boods of acedunti a1 the basis of actuarial valuation as per the projected wnit
credit method

Charge to the consolidated statement of profit and loss based on defined contribution plans 315t March 2022 31st March 2021
F=ployer's contribution to regional provdert fund oifice oL 1082

Disclosures for defined benefit plans based on actuarlal valuatlon reports:
The following tables summarize the components of net senefit expanse recognized in the consalidated statement of profit and oss and the unfunded status
and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity.

Expenses r dim lidated of profit and loss 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Current service cost 1127 1.865
Past service cost - -
Imarest cost 270 430
Beturn on plan assels (3991 {3480}
Total expenses/{income) recognised in the consclidated statement of profit and lass 998 2,005
Expenses recognized In the other comprehensive income {OC1) for current year 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Cpening amount recognised in other comprehensive incorme {3,495) {126)
Actuarial {gains}/losses on obligation for the seriod - Bue to changes in demographic assumptions - [§1]
Actuarial {gains}flosses on abligation for the seriod - Due ta changes in finsntial 3ssumotians {48) 31
Actvarial {gains)/losses an abligation for the seriod - Due ta experience adjustment {743) (3.727)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (28) {718)
Net {income]/expense for the period recognized In OCI (A‘E {4,241}
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 3135t March 2022 31st March 2021
PFraent value of unfunded abligation 6,152 7.268
Fi'r value af plan assels 6,375 6,379
Net liability recegnised In the Balance Sheet 1223y 1,489
Recognised under

Bun current provision (226) 1,775
Current pravision 3 3
Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Opening defined benefit asligation 6,091 7496
Current service cost 1127 1,865
Interest cost 270 480
Past service cost

Benefits paid {539) 1353)
Actuarial igains) / lasses an obligatan {721} (3,397)
Closing defined benefit obligation 5,157 £001
Changes in fair value of pan asset: A1st March 2022 31st March 2021
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 6379 S47a
Actaaf return on plan assets 417

Contributions

Benefits pad (a11) (353)
fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 6,375 6.31‘&

Since tne entire amount of plan obligatien is unfunded therefore changes In fair value of plan assets, categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair vame
of total plan assets and Group's expected tantribut.on ta the plan assets for the next year is not given.

The principal assumptlons used in di g gratuity oblig: 313t March 2022 31st March 2021
Discount rate [0.3.)" 6.25% 600%t06B0%
Salary escalation rata™" S.D0% 5%10 10%
Retirement age - 60
Average past service {yearsh 19 Years
Average age {years) 341 Years
Average remaining working ives o° emplayaes {years} 21 Years
Attrition rate 20%
Ages - Withdrawal rates
Upto 30 years 2%
Above 30 years 1%
Mortality 141M 201214 JALM 2012-14

* The discount rate iz generally based upon the marker yie'ds available on Government bonds at the accouting rate re'evant to currency of benefit payments
for a term that matches the Fabilities

“* Salary growth rate &% Group's long term best estimate as to salary ncreases & takes account of inflation, seniority. pramation, busingss ptan. HR policy and
other relevant factors on long term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard

The estimates af future salary increases considered in actyarial valuatian take account of inflaton, total amount of inflation, semior.ty, promation and ather
relevant factors, such 3s supply and demand in the employment maret

The Group regu'arly assesses these assumptions wth the projected long-ters o'ans and preva'ent industey standards. The imoact of senstivly due to changes
i the significant actuarial assumptions on tae definad penefit 00 gations is given in the tao'e below
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Particedars Change In assumptions 3151 March 2022 315t March 2021

Discaiutil rate +1.0% -
- LO% -
Satary #4ca'ation «05% -
-0.5% -

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapalates the impact on defined penefit sbligation as a resu't of reasonabe
thanges i key attumptions ccurring at the end o the reporting period

Expected contribution to fund In the next year 31st March 2022 313t March 2021

Expected contribut'on to fund in the next year 1955 2,16%
Gratulty amounts for current year and previous years 31st March 2022 A1t March 2021
Defined benefit avigation -

Surplus/{Deficit] -

Projected plan cash low:
The table below shows the expected cash flaw profle of the benelts Lo be paid to the current membershin o' Ine o.an bated on Dast service of the employeet
as at the valuation date:

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Expected benefits for year 1
Expected benefits for year I
Expected banefits for year 3
Expected benefilt for year 4
Expected banefiti for year &
Expected benefiti for year 5 above
Total

b
W1OAD R R W A
[N NN

-

43

Sensitivity Analys's

Sigmficant actuaral ter the de ot the defined benerit abliganon are discount rate and expcred salan e e eare. Efiect of ¢l haoge n
muerahiy rate s acghgpbic. Please note thar the senunviy mmalvas peesented below fhay not be epeesentanve of i scrual change in e defined benetit obilgaoon
as 1t s unlikely that the change in assumption would occur i wolation of one another 13 some of the assumptions =y be cotrelited. The eesalts of senatsviy
amalysis aor gven helow

Panticulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Peojecied Beacfir Oblgauon aa Cureent Assumpraons -
a} Liefrct of 1%s change i assumed discount sare
1%0 anic rease -+ -t
1%a decreise 3y N Ll

{b} Efteun of 17 change s assumed salary excalimein tare

L®wincrease b
1* s decresw 45,
Risk anatysis

The Group is exposed 1o a numeer of risks in the defined bene’ L plant. kMast $glicant risks pertaining 10 def ned oenefits plans and management estimat'on of
the 'mpact of these risks are as fallgws:

Inflatan risk: Currently the Group has ot funded tne definad benefit plans. Therefore. the Graup wil have Lo bear the entire increase in lability on account of
inflatsan

Longevty risk/flife expectanty: The present value of the defined beneflt gan habity 13 calculated by referente ta the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and at the end of tne emo'oyment Anincrease In the e expectancy of the plan Participants wil increase the plan iabiity

Salary grarwth risk: The present value of (he defined benefit plan Lablty 's caculated by reference 10 the future salaries of plan partcioants. An ingrease in the
salary of the plan particioants w! ncrease 1he oian iz ity

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year encded
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Grass amount required to be spant daring the year 3,765 3.2

Amount incurred as inc uded in Qther expenses. X 31

Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2022

Partlculars In cash, Yet to be pad Total

a) Consteuctionfacquisitian of gny asset B
) On ourposes other than {3) sbove 3,770 3,770
Taotal ENE] = 3,770
Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars In cash‘ Yet to be pald Total

af Constructionfacguisition of any asset

b) On gurposes other than {a} ahove 3,270 - 327
M 3270 - 3270

Related party transactions during the year n relat.an ta CSR enpenditure 1 Ri N [Presious Year Rs Ni|

Expendhiture in Foreign currency
,f-;ticulars For the year ended |  For the year ended
Mareh 31, 3022 i March 31,2021
Other Expenses A i , 1300

—
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Yes Capital (india) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the ¢ lidated flnancial stat for the year ended 31st March 2022

b . a1

{an in INR th ds, unless )

30 Related party disclosures

A Asrequired under Ind AS 24 - List of refated parties and relationsh ips with whom transaction have taken place and relationships
of control identified by management and refied by auditor

Nature of relationship Name of related parties

KMP and their relatives of the Holding Company Radha Kapoor Khanna - Director
Raakhe Kapoor Tandon - Director
Roshini Kapoor - Director

Rutva Oza - Company Secretary

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel and their relatives | DoIT Creations {India) Private Limited

exercise significant influence Margan Credit Private Limited

DolT Urbian Ventures {India) Private Limited

DICE Districts {India) Private Limited

DolIT Smart Hospitality {Inida) Private Limited

DolT Smart Infrastructure (India) Private Limited

DolT Urban Ventures {India) Private Limited

DolT Creative Consumer Ventures (India) Private Limited

DaIT Eco-Tourism India Private Limited

DolT Real Assets {India} Private Limited

DoIT Retail Brands {India) Private Limited

DolT Urban tnfranetwork Services {india) Private Limited

NCUBE Planning and Design Private Limited

Bliss Apartrnent (Mumbaij Private Limited
Indian School of Management and Entrepreneurship

Private Lirited

RAAS Investments India Private Limited

Bliss Habitat Private Limited

Imagine Reality Private Limited

Rab Enterprises {India} Private Limited

RAVI Renewable Energy & Lighting India Private Limited

Rurban Agri Ventures India Private Limited

RAVI Integrated Logistics (India) Private Limited

RAVI Horticulture {India) Pvt Ltd

Dice Accelwaration & Educate Services {india) Private
Limited




Transactlons with related partles

Nature of transaction

Year ended

Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Unsecured toan taken

DolT Creations (India) Private Limited

Dice Accelearation & Educate Services (India) Private Limited

Indian Schoo! of Management and Entrepreneurship Private Limited
Morgan Credit Private Limited

Uns loan r
DolT Creations {India) Private Limited
Morgan Credit Private Limited

Payment made on thalr behatf

DolT Urban Venture India Private Limited
Roshini Kapoor

Director Remuyneration

Roshini Kapoor

Remuneration®®
Rutva Oza

i fi cel
Dice Actelearation & Educate Servicas {India) Private Limited
Indian School of Management and Entreprencurship Private Limited

Interest expense on loan taken

DolT Creations {India) Private Limited

DICE Districts {India)] Private Limited

DolT Smart Infrastructure {India) Private Limited
DOIT Urban Ventures (India) Prvate Limited

39,600
2,94,999
127,512
3,472,950

13,498,350
53,000

17

7500

46,700

184

1,750

2,150

** Remuneration includes bonus

Balances with related parties

[ Natyre of wansaction

Asat

Asat

Trade receivable

Apex Clubs india Private Limited

Un red toan tak

DolT Creations {India] Private Limited

Dice Accefearation & Educate Services (India) Private Limited

Indian Schoo! of Management and Entrepreneurship Private Limited
Morgan Credit Private Limited

frector Remuneration Pyyable
Roshini Kapoor

Remuneration Payable

Rutva Oza

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

DelT Creations (India) Private Limited

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

2,328

2,94,999
1,27,512
1,894,950

1,03,449

2,328

13,09,750

199

150

1,03,449
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Yes Capital {India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, untess otherwise stated)

Segment Reporting

In accordance with Accounting Standard ind AS 108 "Operating ségment’, the Group's cperatiord Fall within a wmgle cperating and geographical, and therefore, no separate disclosiss

on segment information is provided in these consahdated financal statementi

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined unider the MSMED Act, 2006

Based on Lhe intimation received by the group, some af the suppliers have confirred to be registered under “The Mitre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development {"MSMED') Act,
2006" Accordingly. the disclotures relating to amounts unpaid a5 at the year ended together with interest paid /payable are furnihed below:

Particulars As at As at
3135t March 2022 31st March 2021
The principal amount and the interest due thereon {to be shown separately] remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 43 187
accounting year/period
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terts of  section 6, of the Micro Small and Mediurm Enterprise Development Act, 2006) Ni il
along with the amount: of the payment made te the suppier beyand the appointed day during each accounting year/pericd
The amoaunt of interest due and payable for 1he periad of delay in making payeent {which have been paid but beyond the appnted i L
day during the year/pesiod} but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Develapment Act,
2606,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year/period; and N Fal
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as Nl Pl
above are actually paid to the mall enterprse for the purpoie of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micrg Small and Medium Entergriie Development Act, 2006
Comrnitments labilities and contingencies
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contingent liabilities
[a) Clairms against the company not acknowledged a: debts
[b} Disputed Income Tax Demands not prowded for in sshsidiary compasy 14,085 14 10%
Commitments
‘z) Estimaled amount of conteacts remaining 1o be executed on capital account and not provided far in subsidiary company
d} Lean Commitments towards partly d sbursed [pans in subsidiary campany 194435 1,08,049
Fair values
(a) Financial instruments by category:
Particulars 31st March 2022
Amortised cost At fair value through At fair value through  Total carrying value
profit or loss oa

Financial assets
Investments - RIAD6] 14 8,26,07%
Cash and cash equivalents 197,248 - 197,248
Bank Balance oiher than above 1,87,94% 287849
Security deposit 6,611 6,611
Trade receivables - =
Loans 32,93,996 31,51.996
Cther financial assets 47,803 - 47 803

38,33,608 8,26,061 14 46,59.682
Financial llabilities
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 917,163 9,172,164
Trade payables 3.461 3,461
Gther financial liabilities 2.35.926 2.35926

11,556,551 - - 11,56,551




Particulars

315t March 2021

Amortised cost At fair value through At fair value through  Total carrying value
profit or loss och
Financial assets
Invertments o 4,10,795 14 11,010
Cash and cash egquivalents 4,24,256 414,256
Bank Balance ather than above 78,358 8,358
Security deposit 5,926 - 5,926
Trade recevablex o 3
Loani 42,52,823 4252,823
Other finaneial aisets 44,435 44,435
438.05.797 2|10 996 14 50‘15&
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings (Other than debrt securitias) 16.58.914 16.58919
Trade payables 4977 4977
Other finangal liakilities 1.47.936 1,47.936
18,11,826 - - 18, 11|826

The management of the Group assessed that Cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables and other financials habilities carrying amount s a reascnable

approsmation of fair value largely due 1o the short-term maturities of these instruments and barrowing [other

of fair value largely due ta the long-term maturities of these instruments

(b} Fair value hierarchy and method of valuation:
The Group categorzes 255ets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to o

described as fafiows:

i) tevel 1 - Inputs are guoted priges {unadjusted) i active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
il) Lavel 2 - Inputi are inputs that are gbservable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or lizbility
iii] ievel 3 - tnputs are unobservable inputs for the asset er liability reflecting significant modifications to observable refated market data or Group’s assumptions about prcing by

market partic/pants.

The dollowing table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the assets and hiabilities of the Group :-

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets/liabilities as at year end:

than debt securitites} carrying amount (s a reasonable approximation

DEerE inputs employed in their measurement which are

Particulars 315t March 2022
Carrying value Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
lnvestments i units of mutwal fungd 6,61,108 - 551,108 661,108
Investments in equity shares 25.386 - 4,385 25.386
Investments in CCPS 139578 - 1¥578 1,39.573
Loans 32,93.996 - 1193, 594 32,93,996
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security depasit 6,61t - E.EL] - 6,611

4126679 - B,32,683 32,93,996 4126679
Particulars 31st March 2021

Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in umits of mutval fund 13,610 - 13610 13.610
Investments in equity shares 25,398 25,398 25,398
Investments in CCPS 1.73.002 1,72,002 172,002
Loans 4251823 4252813 4252,823
Financlal assets measured at amortised cost
Security depaosit 5926 - 5.926 - 5.926

44.69,759 - 2,16,936 42,52,823 44,69 759
Particulars Fair value hierarchy  Valuation technigue Inputs used

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in mutual fund units

Finandal assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposit

Finangial liabllities at amortised cost
Debt securities

Levet2
Level 1
Level 2

Level 2

Net assets value

Dicaunted cash flow

Dittounted cash flaw

Quoted prices

Net assets value (NAV) in an active market
Closing price from recognised stock exchange {NSE)
Prevailing interest rates in the market, Fulure cash lows

Prevailing sirast rates in the market, Future cash flows

g C

Q =
~a

Fa

04
N2

{%] muMBAl )%
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Yes Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes formming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
{All amou nts In INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’'s present business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group's senior management
oversees the management of these risks,

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Group's financial instrument is
exposed to interest rate risk and price risk.

Credit riske

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial loss. Credit risk arises principally from the Group's
receivables from cash held with banks and financial institutions and other financial asset. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial
assets. Crendit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets are limited as Group ensure to engage with counterparties that have a good credit rating. The
Group doe s not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations. The Group manages liquidity risk by borrowings, fund infusion by issue of equ ty shares,
continvously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group may be require to pay. The tables include principal cash flows. The
contractuai maturity i4 based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

Year ended 31st March 2022 On demand Less than 3 months | 3to12 months | 1to 5 years > 5 years Total

Trades payables 1,056 2,294 112 - 3,461
Borrowings [(ther than debt securities) 30 - 9,17,134 - 9,17,164
Other current financial liabilities 1,86,725 4,193 41,368 5,482 2,37,768
Year ended 31st March 2021 On demand Less than 3 months | 3to12 months | 1toS years > 5 years Total

Trades payables . 2,104 2,273 ] N 4,977
Borrowings [Other than debt securities) - 109 50,000 16,08,80S - 16,58,914
Other cur rent financial liabilities 98,082 10,092 749,704 10,394 - 2,008,271

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s management is to maximise the shareholder value. For the purpase of the capital management, capital includes equity and combination
of various debt instrument. The Group manage their capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants,

31st March 2022  31st March 2021

Total equity 38,20,518 35,92,237
Debt securities -

Burrowings_(Other than debt securities) 9,17,164 16,58,914
Total Debt 9,17,164 16,58,914
Cash 8 Cash equivalents 1,97,248 3,10,370
Net Debt 11,143,412 19,69,283
Debt /Equity Ratio 0.29 0.55

Yes Capital (India) Private Limited {standalone} is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (R8I). The Core Investment Companies {Reserve
Bank) Dire ctions, 2016, stipulate that the Adjusted Net Worth of a CIC-ND-5! shall at no point in time be less than 30% its risk weighted assets on balance sheet and risk
adjusted value of off-balance sheet items as on date of the last audited balance as at the end of the financial year. The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016, further stipulate that the outside liabilities of a CIC-ND-SI shall at no point of time exceed 2.5 times its Adjusted Net Worth as on date of the last audited
balance as at the end of the financial year.

The Comp any on standalone basis has complied with all regulatory requirements related capital and capital adequacy requirement as prescribed by RBI.
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Yas Capltal {Wwha) Private Umiad
Not forming part of the sviclidated Rnsncisl statements for the year ended 1ict March 2022
(AN pmeuris In INR thoussnds, uneis etherwize stated)

M Vrade Paysbles Ageing Schaduly

A 31 314 March 2012

‘Outstanding for

Particulars
Les thas 1 yar 1-2 years

riods irons due date of

2-1years Merg thin 3 years

TOTAL

43

LR £

3418

i) Disouted dues - Dhers

As at 335 Masch 2021

Fariodars

Less than 1 year

a3 years

Hra

sy o e penet e o dts o porvrt |
More than § years

A0

L
Barrowing.

Cther nancsl Hiets

For the year 3021 21
1to? days

210 14davs

15 days to M0/31dpys
Over L monthv o 2 monint
Over 2 manthi 1o Y months.
Over 2 months to & mankhy
Oves B month 1o ] year
Dwver | yesr to 3 ey
Oves Iytarsta s years

| Over Syeart

511

2,000

463

1L.500

8,20910

bE )

Fou the year 2020-21

1io7 duvs

B pdip

15 davs 10 3 11 divs

Over L month to I montny
O 1 monih 16 A monthg
Dver 3 montha to b moathy
Quet Gmonthate 1 year
Chver 1yar to 3 vturs
Over 3uears10S years

Over § years

2813

11500

14,131,200
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ote -

L. Market borrgw' s induded incerest oayable 00 Déveiw ngs

2. Imraiments included neestment in Uited and unlisted 1ecyrit es,

3. Cuner Franeidl et included Caab and < €qu v'ent and Aterest )orped i Faed dasiits
4 Othes Francial “apites induded emoloyer related gutt

40 Schadule to the Retence Sheet of the Company 85 hrquiced by ROI/ONBA/2016-17/39 e Master Direction - Lo Trwvastmaent Companles (Aeserve Bank) Directons, 2014 daied Sth October 1020

11 | Usbilitins side :

As a8 3Lt March 2072

As a4 Ibst March 2031

Loarns 3nd sdvances svaded by th of interen
[3) Dedentures - Secued

Umecured
{orher than fa:ag within the mesning of pubi'c deaas.ts]
{b) Deferred Credits
{eh Term Loams

(d} Inter-corporate Wans khd borrowing.
[e) Commarcal Pycer

Amount

|| {7 Cicher Loara {Bor! gwings]

2)) Assets side ;

Amourt sutstanding as st 3ist March 202

Braskup of Loans and Advinces Induding billa 1ecHvalln (other than those Induded in)
03] babow]

Amount oustaading oy ot 315t March J021

{a) Secured 360,000 3,60,000
(0} Umecured N i
|| feml 3,60, 360,000

3 wmudummmnnmm-wmrmmammm
activities

(] ) Lease sssets inghod ng irase rencals under randy gebtens:
(] Financial 'eane
(bhOperating ‘case

171) St0ck on h're Incfug'ng hire charges undes sund-y oebxors:
{al Assetson Wre
{0) Aepasiested Asiets

(i) Other ko8 count ng Mwards AFC act vt es
(aiLosng whire assets Aave Deen repotpessed

L_l {5]toans ower tnas {a) sbove




ib) Prefrence
{iil Detiamures and bands
M) Unes of Mutudl lunds
() Governtrent Secarities
) Qntes {please specify)
2. unguoted
Hrshares (3] By
18] Predecence.
] Debentures and bandy.
() A of motual funds
[vh Governman Seqyrites
[v) Others [olease soecity]
Long Larm Investmends
1. Quoted
() Shares (3] Equity
(b) Preference
[5h Gebentures and bonds
AR Unts of mutya! fusds
1) Government Securites,
iv) Dahers {oitase snecify)
2. Unquoted:
) 5haces | (2] Equity
[b) Preference
{51 Debentures and boady
{T) Unrs of mutuat funds
) Government Secyrities
[w) Qehees (please soecity}
Totd

At outstanding as ot Jist arch 2023

BI1
1.99.838

6,58,145

Amaunt outstanding b3 al 315t March 2021

%5384
2.0

10,747

131

|48 én (2} and {3} sbove:

5] | Sarrowsr grovp-wist classification of ssets fina rcd)

Amoum net of prowisien i4

at 31t March 2013

Amoum nt of peeiiion . at 31t March 2021

Teasl

Secursd

Umsecussd Towal

| 1-rewreaFaves
{al Subsdiaries
1) Comaanies inthe e groun
(c) Cner relsred parties

2. Qther than reiated parties

Towad

" of sl

6] | ivastor g
| vcurities fhoth quoted snd wiguoted)

[current and long 1erm) In shanes and

Markart Valua / Break up
orfair valug or NAY.

Catagory

b Relried Parties
8] SubgiFaries
{b) Companes in the same grous
(£} Ohet retated parties

2. Other than relaled paries

Tordl

Az 315t March 2022

As ot 31st March 2021

Book Vsl {Net of
provisions)

1
8.86.320

B.BE. AN

Markat Value [ esdkup| Book Value [Met of
or fale vahos or kY ovitom)

14 E
259,115 2,59.215

BN |

1,59, 13% sy

Qthér Information

LYY

11) Gross Non- Parforming Astets
lalkelated parries
(b} Othar than regted partier
(i) Net Hoer Performng Assets
{a) Relpted Partiny
§0] Ochver than relsied partes
[ (%) Adsets acquired in satisfact.on of dest

Aumaunt 84 3% 31 Birch 2022

3.60,000

90.000

Amount a3 st 10 March 2021

3,650,000

50,000
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Yes Capital (India} Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Employee Stock Option Schemes {ESOS) in Subsidiary company-ART Housing Finance (India) Limited

ART Housing Finance (India} Limited had in the previous years announced and adopted ESQS schemes for its employees wherein each option
represents one equity share of the Company. Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board of Directors adrmimisters each
ofthe plans.

AHFL ESOS - MAY'2017

The shareholders of the Company at their meeting dated May 29, 2017 approved the "AAHFL ESOP - MAY'2017° scheme consisting of 2,500,000
stock options representing 2,500,000 fully paid up equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company to be issued in ane or more tranches to eligible
employees of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company has, at its
meeting held on dated May 29, 2017, November 3, 2017 and December 8, 2017, granted, following the intrinsic method of accounting as is
prescribed in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting for Employees Share Based Payments
{"the Guidelines”). However, the Company has increased the overall limit of stock options up to 5,000,000 under the said scheme on
recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of share holders vide their general meeting held on April 4, 2018,
As the options have been granted at intrinsic value, there is no employee stock compensation expense on account of the same. These options
vest with effect from the first vesting date i.e. May 29, 2019, whereby the options vest on each vesting date as per the vesting schedule
provided in the Scheme,

AHFL ESOS - MAY'2017
The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time, being
not less than the face value of a share of the Company as on date of grant.

Particulars
Exercise price

Vesting conditions On expiry of one year- 0% of options granted
On expiry of two year- 20% of options granted
On expiry of three year- 20% of options granted
On expiry of four year- 30% of options granted
On expiry of five year- 30% of options granted
5 years from the date of vesting

Continued employment at the vesting date

The exercise period shall be determined by the Board of Directors in consartium with the liquidity event.

Maximum term of gptions granted
Vesting requirgments
Exercise period

Pricing Formula Calculation is based on fair value method

AHFL ESOS - MAY'2019

The shareholders of the Company at their meeting dated May 9, 2019 approved the 'AAHFL ESOP - MAY'2019' scheme consisting of 5,000,000
stock options representing 5,000,000 fully paid up equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company to be issued in one or more tranches to eligible
employees of the Company & its Subsidiary/ Holding Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board of
Directors of the Company has also at its meeting heid on dated May 6, 2019 granted the same, following the intrinsic method of accounting as is
prescribed in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting for Employees Share Based Payments
(“the Guidelines”). As the options have been granted at intrinsic value, there is no employee stock compensation expense on account of the
same. These options vest with effect from the first vesting date i.e. May 29, 2020, whereby the options vest on each vesting date as per the
vesting schedule provided in the Scheme.

AHFL ESCS - MAY'2019
The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time, being
not less than the face value of a share of the Company as on date of grant.

Particulars
Exercise price

Vesting conditions On expiry of one year- 20% of options granted
On expiry of two year- 20% of options granted
On expiry of three year- 30% of options granted
On expiry of four year- 30% of options granted
4 years from the date of vesting

Continued employment at the vesting date

The exercise period shall be determined by the Board of Directors in consortium with the liquidity event,

Maximurmn term of options granted
Vesting reguirements
Exercise period

Pricing Formula Calculation is based on fair value method

Option movement during the year

AHFL ESOS - MAY'2017

AHFL ESOS - MAY'2019

|particulars For the year For the year ended For the year For the year
ended March 31,/ March 31,2021  |ended March 31, |ended March 31,
2022 2022 2021
No. of options ocutstanding at the beginning of the year 11,64,500 42,72,000 7,131,500 25,26,500
Ne. of options granted during the year - - - -
No. of options forfeited/lapsed during the year {4,08,500} (31,07,500)| [3,13,000) (18,13,000)
No. of options exercised during the year . 5 g -
No. of options outstanding at the end of the year 7.56,000 11,64,500 4,00,500 7,13,500
No. of stock exercisable at the end of the year - 5 .
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Yes Capital (indiaj Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements far the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amouets = INR thousands. unless otherwise stazed)

The followirg add.tional disclosures have been have been prepared o sre 2as's of previous Ind AS ard g¥en In terms of Ma.

ster Direction — Non-Barxirg Finarcia' Comeany Housng Finance

Company [Reserve Bank) Disections, 2021, Notification no. DOR FIN. HFC £C.No.120/03 10 136;202021 dated February 17, 2021 issued by RBland s g.ven pelow

Summary of $ignificant Accounting Policies

The accoumting pelicies regard'ng “ey areas of acerations are discioses s note 1-3 of accouwt: g 2tlcy lo “he Financal Statement

tor the vear ended March 31, 2022

Capital

Particulars Asat As at|
March 31, March 31, 2021

2022

(t Canital 1o Risk Asset Ratio - CRAR {%) 163.94% 184.32%

() CRAR-Tier | Capizal (36} 162.69% 183.73%

[iii] CRAR-Tier It Capizal {%| 1.258% 0 59%

fivl A=ount of suterdinated debt raised as Tier- Il Capita N N

{v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetua Debt Instruments N N

Reserve fund under section 29¢ of National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Particulars As at As at
March 31,| March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year

) Stazuzary reserve under section 29C of the Mational Housirg Back Act, 1987 18823

b} Amirt of spedial reserve urder section 36(1ivii] of trcome-tax Act, 1961 1aker rto account ‘or the purpases of 35,552

sTatutory resen ander Section 29C of the NKB Act, 1987

¢) Total 92,770 52,815

Additlon/ appropriation/ withdrawal during the year

Add:

3} Amcurt transferred under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 8305

b) Amaut of special resecve under section 36{1){viif of Income-zax Act, 1961 taker inro account ‘ar ‘ne gurgoses o IRATS 19955

slatutcry reserve urder Secton 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Less:

a} Amaunt aporagriated ‘rom ine Slatutory reserve under section 20C of tne NHB Act, 1987 M N

b) Amaun: witrdramn from the special reserve ufs 36{1){v- | of Income-tax N N

Act, 1961 taken #ni Bftoun: whigh has been taken irto accouny 107 the purpase of arovislon 't 29C of sne NHE Ac: 1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statuiory reserve ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Ac,, 1587 25,128 16,823

o} Amaunt of special resarve /s 36{1)(viiidof Income -rax A¢t, 1961 ta<er irto actount for tre cupises o st 1,042,222 75,947

reserve under Section 29¢ of the NMB Acz, 1987

¢} Total 1,209,550 92,77¢

previgus year.

The Company has ot w thdrawn any amaurt fram Statutory Reserve created u/'s 29C of the Natona! Haus.ng Bank Act, 1987 duving the curren: year and

Particulars As at As 3

March 3t,| March 31, 2021
2022

Value of investments

{i] Gross value gf irvesiments

{a) In India 490,520 11347

L} Quiside trdia Mi

(ii) Provision for deceeciation

{a)inirda ] N

[b) Qutside India N M

{iii) Net value of investments

{a)in India 4,890,540 112a7

{&) Qutside India Ni N

M of provisions held ds depreciation on investments

{i) Opening balance M M

{ii} Add: Provisions made durirg she year N M

(iii) Less: Write-off / wrizzen-pack of excess provisions during the year N N

[iv) Closing balarce N N
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43.4.3
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Yes Capital {indla) Private Limited
Notes farening part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amsountyin INR thausandd, uriess otherwite iiated

Derlvatives
Forward Rate Agreement {FRA} / Interest Rate Swap {IRS)
Particulars As at As at)
March 31,| March 31, 2031
2022
i} The cotional principa’ of swas agreements Wi L
(i} Losses which would Ee incurred if counterparties failed to fulfi 2neir ob/igatiars under tre agreements N L]
(iii) Collazeral required by 1he housing finarce companies ucon eniefirg N0 Swagh i L]
{iv} Corcentration of credit rish arising from e swaps M ]
tv) The fair value of the swao boak N e
Note: There are no derivat ve rransactions daring the year/ previous ysar
Exchange Traded Interest Rate {IR) Derivative
Partlculars As at As at
Marsch 31,| March 31, 2021
2022
(i} Notignal principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatves wwderiaces duri=g tne year [ st umenrt wie| N Ni
fii) Notienal arincipal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives ouisianding a3 or end &f vea” |insryment-wite] N M
{iii) Motiona! princina’ amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outsiand rg ard no: “highly effecs ve ™ [Fstrument-wite N N
(iv) Mark-to-market value of excharge traded IR derivatives gutstanding ard et = ghly e%actve” [ntrument-wisel N N

No:te: There ate no derivative transactions during the yeas/ arevious year

Disclosurgs on risk exposure in derivatives - Qualitative Disclosure
The Campany bas na trarsactansfexnosure i derivat ves in the Current 34d ooevitus year

Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives - quantitative disclosure
Particulars

{a) Assets (+)

{b) Liatility (-]

{+) Credit exgosure (2]
{iv) Urredged expasures

Securitlsatlon

Particulars

transactions

Daance sheet

[iy Derivatives {Notiona' Princigat Amount)
[ii) Marked to marke- oositions (1]
Ngte: Trere are no derivative ransactions during tne furrert year/ previaus year

Numbars Amount
i Numser of Soecia: Purpose Eruites 3PV 5| spansared By the Housirg Finance Comaany 'RFC | far iecari-sazan N N
2 Total amount of securizised assess as cer book; of the 5PV sponscred N LB
3 Total amourt of exposures retained by the HFC sowards the M.nimum Rezersian Reqairement |MRR) ai o the dare & ] Ni
{1l Of-balance sheet exposures tawards cred.s entraton N Mi
W) Or-balance shee: exposuras towards credit concentration Ni M
4. Amourt of exposures 10 securitisation transactions o:ne- than MRR N: M
1y Cff-Balance sheet exposures towasds cred:t concentration Ni N
3) Exposure to own secur.tizatians N N
b) Exposure 10 third party securitisations il N
{1} Or-balance sheet exposuras towards cred's concenzrat on M N
a) Exposure to own securitizations N N
3] Exposure o third party securitisat'ons N N

Ngte: Trere are no Securitizazion trarsactions durirg the gurrent year/ Previoas year
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Yes Capital {india) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Al amauns in INR (Roukands wmless otherw se stated)

Detalls of financial assets sold to Securitisation/ Reconstruction company for Asset Reconstruction

Particulars As at As at|
Macch 31,| March 31, 2021
2022
{i] No. of accounts N L
(1) Aggregate vatue {ne: of provisions) of accounts sold o Securirisasion Company / Reconstruction Company N L
(i) Aggregate consideration N L
(iv) Additional consideration realized 'n ressect of accounts “rarsferred in earl'er yeass N B
(v} Age-egate ga'n £ loss over net book vatue Ni B
Note There are ng securitization transactions during the current yeas/ previous year
Details of assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs
Particulars As at| As at
March 31,{ March 31, 2023
2022
(i) Number of accounts 1,14, 500 H
{i) Aggregate value [net of growisians) of accourts assigned 7.05.861 L]
lil) Aggregate consderat.on 705,861 M
{iv] Add tional cons deratian realired i respect of accounts transferred in ead i yEaCE LE
gngsrega!e 210 / [o8E Cwer M nook valye 32,305 N:
Details of non-perferming financial assets purchased / sold
A. Detalls of non-performing financial assets purchased:
|Particulars As at As at
March 31,| March 31, 2021
2022
1.{a) Mumber of accounts purcraiad during < e year N W
{B) Aggregate outstardicg N 5
2. {a) Of these, rumber of actounts réstructured dwring the year N N
{b) Aggregate outstard.ng N N
B. Details of non-performing flnancial assets sold:
Particulars As ay As at
March 31,] March 31, 2021
2022
1. Number of accourts soid N L
2 Aggregate oulstardirg N L
3. Aggregate consideran on feieived N M
Assets Uability Management
Maturity pattern of certain Ms of Assets/ Liabllities As on March 31, 2022
Labilities | 1to7days | 8to 14 days |15 daysto Over one Over 2 |Over 3 months to| Over 6 months |Qvar 1 year to| Over 3 years to] Over 5 years Total
0/ menth to 2 months 6 months. to 1year 3 years 5 years
days [one manths upto 3
month} months
Deposits - =
Borrowings - - - 199731 - 1,959,733
{Fareign v - L - -
Currency
hatlities
Total - - . . - 1,99,733 - 199,733
Assets
Advances 45,557 16,592 16,592 LR TR 1% Lighyl 1, 5.da2 256374 130T 4,10 B3E 40,13, 467
Investments 150,040 200,000 | 1.0C,000 - 5400 4,90,540
Fareign - o e L
Currency
235815
Total 2,35,597 2,16,592 | 116,592 63,110 | 7,60,196 118,371 1,79.442 8,66,440 1,33,758 24,131,336 45,03,473

*Mozurity of advances inciudes the inon comemiimenis
Note. Fareign currenty labhines and foréign currency assets are Ml




Yes Capital {Indla) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Al' amounts in INR thousands, uniess sirerwise stated)

Maturi ttern of certaln Items of Assets/ Liabilities As on March 31, 2021
Liabilitles lio7days | 8to 14days [15daysto Over one Over 2 |Over 3 months to| Over 6 manths|QOver 1 year to| Over 3 years 10| Over s years Total

30/ menth to 2 manths 6 months to ] year Iyears Syears

days [one months upte 3

month] manths
Deposits g e 5 )
Borrowngs - 3 v . o - 30,000 20000 93,965 - 3,49,965
Faregn 5 - 5 . - i i =
Currengy
liakilizies
Total - - - - - 50,000 2,00,000 99,985 - 3,49,955
Assets
Advances 30,056 005G 56.034 63.021 69.571 LELIRS 1.1, 73Y 1TaTar 4,565,158 1L.2i492 44,56,089
Investments 10,747 . - - - 400 11,247
Fereign - - . - ' = - .
{utrenty
35515
Total 490,802 30,056 56,034 69,021 69,571 1,63,186 441733 678,742 4,96,083 31,22,032 51,67,266

e
*Matunty of advances inciudes the loon commitments
Nate: Foregn currency kabiites and foreign custency giiets are My

43.7 Exposure

43.7.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category Asat A at
March 31,| March 31, 2021

2022

3. Direct exposure

1Residentlal mortgages-
erd g ‘ully secured by mertgages on residential procesty that s or wi' te occup.-ed oy TPe Dorrdwdr SF R 4 Temed AR 3T
Expoiste would also inciude ron-fund based (NFB) imizs.

i) Commersial real estate- -
Lerding secured by morigages on commercial real estate [o¥ice buildirgs, reta | space, multguroose commeroial 21,628 194,

1]

aremies. mu'nfamiy residential puildings, mutitenanzed commercia gremses, industrial or warerouse svace, holels,

#nd acguisition, developmens and constraction, exc.). Exposure would also inciude ron-fund pazed (NFB} im.ts
+Non Fund Based Exposure to CRE

I} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) & others securitised exposures
a Residential ™ ™
. Commiercial Real Estate L H
b. Indirect exposure
Fund nased ard nen-furd Bated exsois'ed on Natonal Hows g Eans (%HB) and Houzing Firance Compi &s (W24 M H

Total Exposure 1o Real Estate Sector 31,81,998 42,51,127
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Yes Capital {india} Private Limited
Natas forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise s ated;

Exposure to Capltal Market
Yhe Company has "o expEiute M cantal macaeT directly or indirectiy in the curre=t and previous year

Particulars As at As at
March 31,| March 31, 2021
2022
I} direczinvestment ‘n equiTy imares, conversible bonds, convertibie debertures and an.is of eqaity or ented muzal fards L L]
he topus of wh o™ is nos exslaiively ovesied in corporate debt
{1} advances againit shares / bonds/ debentures.or ather securities of o1 ¢'ear oasis 1o rdiv daa’s for irvesimenst in ] L]
shares {including IPOs/ ESOPs), convertible bords, convertle debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual furds
{iii} advances for any other purpases where shares or canvessibie 20nds or convertiie deentyres or unvs of equ sy ] L
oriened mutual furds are taker as primary security
(v} advances for any other purpases 1o the extent secured ay ire cobatera secarity of shares or corverstle borgs o- L] L}
convertible debentures or units of equity orierted mutual furds e, where the srimary SecJrity other than shares |/
convertible bonds /convertible debertures / units of equ.ty or ened mytea’ “urds does not fu w COver i advarces
{v} secared and unsecured acvances to stockbrokers ard gJarantees issued on behad of stockbrokers and marcar maters Ul L
(v} 'oans sanctiored to corporates agains: the security of phares / conds / desertures of other Securizias or an glear bagls L ]
‘of meeting promorer's CORriDUTION 10 The equity of new romEcan'es i anticipation o raising resou‘{es
{vii) Bridge loans o companies against expected equity flows fissaes H ]
[viii] Underwriting commitmen:s 1aken up by the NBFCs [ resect of trimary issae of shares or conversis'e bords ar LE L
convertib'e debentures or units of equity orierzed muatual furds
{ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin tradirg L L]
{x) All exposures 1o Aiternative Invastmen: Funds
{ij Category ) L] ]
(i) Category Il B ]
{iiil Category i1 ]
Total exposure to Capital Market M N
Details of Financing of parent company products
There iz ro fnancing of parent company vroducts
Details of Singfe Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC
The Campany Mas rot exceeded the Sirg'e Borrower Lim'= ard Grous Bor-ower Limiz s arescriced oy NHB
Details of Wnsecured Advances
Compary has given the wnietured advarces for which d scosyre Fas been oroy ded in note ~a. bh]
Exposure to greup companles d in real estate busil
Description Amount {€in| % of owned
Lakhs} fund
i1 Exaosure 10 any s.rgle entiry in 3 group engaged 'n real eszate busiress L i
iiy Exposure 10 all erntities n 3 grouc engaged n -eal estate Husiress i B
Other disclosures
Reglstration obtained from other financlal sector regulators
The Campany s not obtained registraz.on from any other firarce sector regulatar
Pisclosure of Penalties Imposed by MHB and other regulators As at As at

March 31,| March 31, 2021

has rot grarted any lpans against collazeral of gold jewellery

2022
i) Details of penalty levied oy National housirg bani ({refer note 47 8.2(a)) B 18600
i) Adverse comments by the National housing bank or regalatery comoliances Fi B
it Percentage of oulstandirg 'vars grarted agains: collare’a’ of g0'd jewellery i0 t0ta cutsla~d.ng asse's - The Company] M B
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Yes Capital {Indla) Private Limited
Notes farming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{all amounts in INA thzusands, un'ess otherwise s:ated;

Currant Year: Penaity NIL

Ruring the prévious year 2020-21, NHB in exercise of tre powers vesied with i under the National Housing Banri A¢r, 1987 nas inposed ceraity of -

1 Rs 1.60,006/- or Agril 21, 2020 on account of non-camgpliance of Para 2{1){zc} of the HFC {NHB) Direcsiors 2010 and Pakicy Circu'ar 55 ard Policy Circalar
83 wrtinspection of patition as of March 31, 2019,

2. Rs 1,000/ on May 26,2020 for Non- compliance witn the orovisions of garagragn 22{2)(ii) of the Housing Firance Companies INHB] Direci.ons, 2010

3. Rs 25,000/ on Septamber 16, 2020 on account of non-compliarce of Para 3{c) of Housing Finance Compar’es on Approval of Acquisizon or Transfer of
Control 2016,

Related Party Transactions
Deta’ls of all material transactions wizh related parties are disclosed n Note 36 o Finangia® Statemats.

Group Structure

'Yes Canital {India! Private U'mited (Uliimate Ho'ding Comaary)
&
ART Capital {Ind a) Private Limized {Parent of ire Hotding Company|
+
ART Busiress and Consumer Firance [ ndia} Private Limited {Hold'rg Company)
N
ART Housirg Fira~ce (Ind.a) Lim.ted (Cemoany}
1

ART Distsibusion {Inda. Private Lim:zed {Sabsidiary Company]

The Groun Mas fi'ed 3 icheme of ama'gamation with Natioral Compary Law Triounal {NCLT), New Delh tetween tre rolging Compary, internediate ~old rg
compary with the Utimate Holding Cempany. As on tre date of tre apcroval of the Lrancial statemens, the NCLT nas d'recied ine ret siorers %o serve
natice of the proposed scheme on the concernad Regional Director, RQC. Official Liquidater. Income Tax depar-mers:, CIC Division of RBt ard o:rer sectara
regJiazors havirg significant bearirg in the operasions of 1he pel.tioner comaaries.

Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year
During the year, CARE has reaffirmed the rating of 'BB+ (BB Ptus) Stac'e Outlook {Lorg Term Facil:zes- Rs S0 crares) on Novembper 01, 2021

Remuneration to Directors
Remureration t¢ Directors of the company covered under thre Companies Acz, 2013 and relevan: provsion of Accounting Standard. Such deta’s are
diselosed in Note 36 above and will also be disclosed in Farm Ho. MGT - 9 as pa-: of Director Recort.

Mangement
Refer to “he Managemer: Ditcussion ard Analysis repor: for the relevar: disclosures.

Net Profit or Loss for the perlod, prior perlod ltems and changes in accounting policles
Trere arne no proe pencd items that have Impac on 15 current year's oroft and loss.

Revenue Recognition
Trere have been na inszances in which revenue recognnon has feen 20s100ned sendirg tre resolution of significant ancertant es

Consolidated Financial Statements {CFS)
As per nd AS 110, Financial Stareanents are being corsolidared at ~old rg company fevel.




Yes Capital [indla) Private Limited
Wotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
1A amountu i INE thoudandy, unless otherw se staned]

43.8.11 Provisions and Contingencles

Break up of 'Provislans and Contingencles' shown under the head E diture In Profit and Loss Account

Particulars As at As at
March 31,1 March 31, 2021,
2022
1 Pravsions for depretiatan on nvestment Ml M
2. Provisian made towards incomestax 55,062 59.842
3. Prowisian towards tul stardard, doubstul ard loss assets 12,268 3349
4. Provisian far standard assers (with desalls | ke zeaser lgan, CRE, CRE-RM ex - .
Teaser wa=s M NP
CRE 1626 5.196,
CRE -RH {1.607 13183
Other siandard asisry 5,430 22,290
5. Other provislon and cantingencies (with details) & -
Expested Credit Loss (Expenses) on Loan Cemmitmest. bad A% 1.909 2.231
On Other Receivables . Exzected Credit Lot 3,148 5,295
Gratuity, compensated absences 1,229 1,479
Employge beneits 10,000 12,000
Prav sion for excenses 8,368 4721
43.8.12 Break up of loan and advances and provisions thereon
Particulars Housing kaans Hon-Houting leans
As at As at As at As at
March31.2022 | march3) 021 —March 31, 2022 Maech 31, 202]
Standard assets
3) Tota outitanding amsmnt 15, 53,037 08 3Ed g, Sl
) Prowvision; mada 58 11 18,255 234015
Sub-standard assets g d .
a) Total gutstandirg amnunt §r.a78 13000
9] Provis ans mads TAE™) 6 325
Doubtful assets ~ Category-| ’ .
a) Total gutstanding amaunt §04s BHR 910
2) Prowisans made 5 | | LN R 4.5
Doubtiul assets - Category-ll )
a) Toral outsranding amaunt LELE - R
] Provissans made L31? B 1 344
Daubtful assets - Category-1ll
3} Total outszanding amount
33 Provisions made
Loss assets
3} Total gutstanding amount Y rig
b) Provisions made 7438 -
Total
3) Total ourstasding amaunt 27,67,756.12 36,28,486.25 11,19,135.95 5,90,604.29
|:)] Provisions made 1,13,851.18 89,714.07 30,628.44 -
43.8.13 Draw Down from Reserves
There has been no draw down from reserves duting the year ended March 31, 2022 (Previous Year N 1}
439  Concentration of pyblic deposits, advances, exposyres and NPAs
43.9.1 Concentration of public deposits {for public deposit taking/holding HFCs)
Particutars As at As at
March 31,{ March 31, 2021
2022
Tota deposits of twenty largest depcsenry Tre Company |5 nan gaaie

dea0s ¢ takirg hausirg firarre
tempany and has not accepted
any pubiic depoits during the
LUrrEnt year ar previous yeark

Percentage of denosits of rwerry argeis denasiors (0 vala deposty of sre WAL
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Yes Capltal {India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
A" a"nounts in INR theusarndi, unles: otherw te atitad)

Concentration of loans and advances

Panticulars

Asat

March 31,| March 31, 2021

As 3t

Tita Toans ard advances 1o twenty (argest Sorrowers 231,537
Purcemtage of l0ans and advances 1o twenty largest borrowers 10 tota advances of the HFC 521N
Concentration of all Exposure (Including off-balance shaet exposure)
Particulars A at As 3
March 31,| Mareh 31, 2021
2022
Tata exdosure to twenty |argest borrowers/ customers R.17 429 Z.22, 00
Pefcertage of exposures to twenty |argest borrowers/ cusiomers 1o 1o%al exatsure of e HFC on bor-owers/ customers. IO 50 459
Concentration of NPAS
Partlculars As 3t As at
March 31,| March 31, 2021
2022
Tata' exgosure 1o o ter NRA accounti 16,827 iL.008
Sector-wise NPAs - Percentage of NPAS to total advances in that sector
Particulars As at| As a

March 31,| March 31, 2021

2022

A. Housing loans:
1. Individ yais 1.65% I
2. Burlders/Project ‘vans N L]
3. Corsorates N N
4 Others [specify] M N
B. Non-Housing loans:
1. Individuals 5.98% D005
2. Bullders/Project loans L R
1. Corporates L L
4. Orhars {soecify| 1l L
Movement of NPAs
Partlculars As at As at

March 31, March 31, 2021

2022

{1} Net NPAs to net advances {%) 1234 155%
W) Movament of NPAs (Gross)
a} Opening ba'ance 1,07.491 51 14,878 79
1) Additions during the year 14867152 1.06,099.96
c) Reductions during the year 1,54,084.34 13,467 13
d) Closing balarce 1,02,075.69 1,07,491.51
(M) Movement of net NPAs
a) Opening balance 64,809.23 10,687 96
b) Additions during the year 1,26,300.48 66,811.03
<} Reductions during tha year 1,43,981.24 12.689.76
d) Closing alance 47,1287 54,809 23
IV} Movemant of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions on standard assets}
3} Openirg balance 41,68228 4,190 82
o) Provisions made during the year 22,3710+ 19,288.93
) Write-ofifwrte-back of excess provisions 10,103.10 79757
d) Closing balarce 5495022 <2682 28




Yes Capital [India} Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Al amaunts r INR trousands, urless otherwse 5tated)

43.10 Overseas assets

Particulars As at As at
darch 31, March 21, 2021
2022
The Campany has not reld any cverseas amets L R
43.11 Off-balance sheet $PVs sponsored fwhich are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,| March 31, 2021,
2022
The Company does not have ary SPVs sponsared which is required ¢ De corsolidated as per accourting rorms. Hi B

43,12 Disclosure of complaints

Summary information on complaints recelved by the Company from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Particulars As at, As at
March 31,| March 31, 2021
2022

Complalnts received by the Company from its customers
I Mo of complainis pending a: the beginning af the vear =] o

2 No. of cempla‘mis recelved dur ng the year v bt ]
3. Number of complaings dispoied during the year 15
3.1 Ofwhich. number of compaints rejected by e NBFC o [

4 No of eomplairts pending ai the erd of the yea+

LA BAT
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Yes Capital {india) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2032
il amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwsie ifsted

Liquidity Risk Manzgement Framework

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty {bath deposits and barrowings)

Particulars As at
March 3], 2022/
Number of significant counter parties 1
Amodn: 1,99,732.93
Percentage of furding concentraticn to tozal degosits HA
Percentage of furding concentration 1o 5otal liabiities* 75.57%
* Total iabilities exsiudes ret worth
Top 20 Ia_r_g: depaosits
Particulars Asat
Tetal amount of tap 20 deposizs Lty
Parcentage of amoun: of ton 20 deposits o total decoss S|
Top 10 borrowlngs
Particulars As at
March 31, 2022
Total amount of tos 19 borrowings 1,59,732.93
Percertage of amount of 10p 10 Eorrowings 1o t0%al Corrowirgs 100 00%
Funding Concentration based on significant Instrument/product
Partleulars As at % of Total
0
Borrowirgs from Bare 75.57%
Borrowirgs from Natioral Housing Banx [NHEB N2
Deot Securites NA
Subordinared fabi ties NA
Secur-tisation NA
Borrowirgs from Insurance C. ies NA
* Total liavliives excludes net worth
Stock Ratio
Particulars As at
March 312023 |
Commercia’ paser ai a cercentage of total pubc funds NA
Commercial paoer as a percentage of 1o7al liabiives Na
Commercial paper as a percentage of tozal assets MA
Non convertible deSentures {origiral maturity of fess than ore year] a3 a sercentage o total ouble furds NA
Non convertible debentures foriginal maturity of fess than ore vear] as a percentage of total liabitsiel Na
Non convertible debentures [original maturity of less than ore yearyai a percertage of 10tal assers NA
Other short term liabilities as a percentage of tota’ aublic fands NA
Other short term liabikt.es a5 a pertentage of tatal abilzies” 072%
Other short term llabilites 35 a percentage of 1otal assess 1.13%

* Tetal dabiities extludes net worsh

I | set-up for lig ¥ rlsk M

The company has an Asser L-ability Maragemenrt Comm.tiee [ALCO} to manitar a55et iahiity mismatches to ersure thas there s noimza'ances or exceshive
CONCentfangn on the edber side of the balance sree:. The comeany maintain: a judicious mix of borrowirgs in ihe farm of Term Loars, Refinance. Cap.ta
Market Instruments. Securizization, Working Cazital and continues to diveriify iis source of parrowirgs with the emphasis on lorger teror Darrowings. The

company has diversit.ed mix of investors/fierders which includes Banxs, Mat'ara’ Housing Bark, Developmert Firancia’ |

Companies etc

tion, Matua’ Funds, Insurance

The Liquidity Risk Management [LRM) of the company is governed by the LRM Policy ascroved by the Board Tre Asse: Liabitty Conmitiee {ALCOY) s
respansib'e for implementing and monitaring the lquidity risk Tanagamen: siraregy of the company n ire Wiz its fisk managemen: gkijectives and ensures

adhrerence to the ris« tolerance“mits set by the Board.
Refer note ro.40 of financali statements

T g

Loans against securlty of single product - gold jewellery
Reter {0 the note no. 6(d) of Loans

Loans against security of shares
Refer to tre note ro Blel of Lodns




Yes Capital (India} Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year snded March 31, 2022
(Al amcuts in INR thouwsands, unless ot erwise stated}

43.16  Disclosure for comparison betwaen provisions required under IRACP and Impairment allowances made under Ind AS 08

A3 on kg
Asset Classification a3 per RBI Norms Asset classifica |Gross Careying Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
tion as per Ind [Amount as per| Allowances Amount required as | between Ind AS
AS 109 Ind AS {Provisions) per IRACP 109
as required norms provisions and
under Ind AS fRACP norms.
109
[1}] 2} 13} (4} [5)=(3]-{4} {6} {7} = {4)-{6}
Performing Assets
Standard Stage ] k% 4L5ER 16,29,567 60 30,978
Stage 2 113,708 25,0471 65,717 500 46,391
Subtotal 37,84 813 89,529 36,95,284 12161 72,369
Non-Performing Assets (NPA}
hubstandard tage 50,278 5216 25,062 71571 17842
Daubtful - un 10 1 vear Stage 3 39.159 19.718 19,442 8. a7
L10 3years Stage 1 5,284 2BAT 2,624 1108 £a47
bore than 3 years Stage 3 :
Sutitora! for doutfu 44,443 22,377 22,086 11,904 10,474
Loss Srage 3 1,257 767 1187 3
Subtotal for NPA 1,02,079 54,950 47,128 26,633 25,318
Cther tems such as guarartees, loan commitments, e3¢, wh'en 30 in the scape of Ird Stage 1 192,636 1608 150,577 0]
AS 109 but not covered under current Income Recognition, Aise: Diass.“cazion and tuage
Provisicning (IRACP) norms Siage 3
Suctotal
Total Stagel |  38,64,541 44,447 38,20,094 11,560 32,887
Stage 2 1,12,708 46,991 65,717 500 46,391
Stage 3 1,02,079 54,950 47,128 26633 28,318
Total 40,79,328 1,46,389 39,32,939 38,793 107,595
43.17  Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Amount Amount
QOutstanding Overdue
Liabillities side
(1} Loans and advances avaled by tne HFC inclusive of intereit acirued thereon cus not oa'd
(3] Debenatures : Secured
: Unsecured
{other tran fall g w.thin the meaing of cuklic deposits)
¢ De‘erred Cred1s .
Term Loars 4.99,731.93
| Inter.corporare |oans and BOTrowrgs
() Commercial Pager
() Public Deposity
(@) Other Loars {Cashcredit, Securitization ard Suzordinated Liabilis.es)
{2) Break-up of (1)(f) above {Duzstarding Budlic depos.is inclusive of interes: accrued therean bul net aa'd) NA NA
{a) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures NA NA
{c) Inthe form of darily secured dedenzures .e. decentures v:here tnere is 3 srarifall .o she va'ue of secursy A A

Mijveal o
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Yes Capltal {India) Private Limited
Notes torming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts in INR thousands, uniess otherwise s:azed)

Particutars

Amount Cutstanding as at
March 31, 2022

Assars side
(3} Break-up of Loans and Advances includirg bills receivali'es [otner than these included n (2) 2etow]
{a) Secured
{b) Ursecured
{4) Brea'wp of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets count.rg toewards asset “nancing activices
{i) Lease assets inctuding lease rentals under sundry debzars
{a} Firancial lease
{b) Operating lease
(ii} Stock on hire including hire charges under surdry destars
(a) Assets o hire
{b) Reoossessed Assets
tiii) Other foans counting towards asset £nancing aczvities
{a) Loans whate assets nave eer recossessed
(b} Laans other than {a) above
(5] Break-up of Invesiments
Current Investments
1 Quoted
(i} Shares
{a) Equity
{t] Praferamce
{if] Dedentures and Bonds
(i) &hnits of muzual funds.
(iv] Government Sacurities
{¥] Others
2 Unguated
{i} Shares
(2) Equity
(b} Preference
(it} Debentures and Bonds
{fit) Units of mutua! fands.
{iv) Government Securites
{v] Cnhers
Lorg Term invesiments
1 Quoted
[i] Shares
(a) Equity
{c] Preference
(i} Qabentures and Bonds
(iii} tPnits of mutua! funds.
{iv] Government Securit’es
{v) Others
2Unquoted
(i} shares
(8] Equity
(b) Preference
(i} Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutua: funds
Iv) Governrent Securites
v Others

31,81.997.93
7.04,892.14

SOG00

{6) Borrower groun-wise ¢lassficat or of assets financed as n (3] a~d {£] above

Category

Amount net of provisions
s at March 31, 2022

Secured Unsecured Total

1 Related Parres
|al Subsidiaries
|bl Campanies in the same groso
{61 Other related parties

2 Otrer than reiated part'es

10707 7.02,074

080,338 30,40,338

Total

30,40,338 102,074 37.42,412




Yes Capital (india) Private Limited
Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[All amounts i INR 1nousands, unless otnerwise stated)

{7) tnvestor group-wite classification of al nvestments (current a~d 'ong erm) in shases ard securizes borh quated asd unguoteq}
B

As at March 31, 2022
Category Market Value f Break up ar | Book Value [Nex of Provisions)
fair value or NAV

\. Related Parties
() Subsidiaries 500 S0
{b} Companies in the s3me group g 2
{c) Other related parties < =

2. nrer tham refazed carties . R

Total 00 500

{H)_Ozher ~formars
|Particulars Amount Outstanding as at
March 31, 2022

Ul Grost Nes-Performing Aisets
{2) Related partes e
{b} Other ihan related parties 107079
lii] Net Non-Performing Assers
{3} Relatad parties
(b) Other thanrelated parties
{iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debs

43.18  Principal Business Criterla for HFCs
Housing {inarce compary™ shall mean a compary nterporazed under e Campan’es Acz, 2013 tnat fulfils tme fallowing ronditions:
{alitis an NBFC whose fnancal assets. n the busiress of praviding finarce for rovsing, const1ute at least 60% of 1s to1al assets {retted 0¥ oy irtarginle asses)
{2) Out of 1-e total asse:s inetted off ay intangible assets), not fess tran S0 s~auld ce Jy way of nowsing francirg ‘or irdividuals,
The Company mee:s the aforesaid orincina! busiress ¢ritesia far HFCs,

Partlcufars Ag at

March 31, 2022
Total Assett 46,283,861
Less: Intang'ble Assets %6542
Totat assett (ne: of Inmangible Assets} 45,72,319
Hizusing France 27.67,75
Individual Housing Firance 27,14 390
Percentage of housing finance 1o tota assets (netzed o rrangiole assers| 60 53%
Percentsge of individual housing finance 1o otal assess iretted off IPLargio e apiels) 55 37%
Fercentage o finarcial assets 1o total assess [rerted off ‘ntangib @ assets) 93.27%
Percenzage of income from finarcia! asse’s 10 gros income 97.75%
Percentage of individua' housirg finance to houi =g finance 98.07%
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Yes Capital {Indla) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the lid fi for the year ended 31st March 2022
[All amounts In INR thausands, unless otharwise stated)

During the previous year under review, a FIR is fited by CBI on the basis of which an ECIR and thereaftar thargesheet was registered oy the Directarate of nfarcement under the savisian oftne
PMLA Act, 2002, relating to a purported conspiracy between April ~ June 2018, against the Company and the promoters of the Company regarding a 'gan amounting to Rs. 600 ¢rores
sanctioned by M/'s. Dewan Housing Finance Limited {DHFL) in faveur of the one of the Eroup company namely BOIT Uraan Yentures Private Limitad [DUYPLI. Sabsequan st the Balance
Sheet date, the Campany has recsived Provisional Attachment Qrders in relfation (0 the ECIR which incudes attachment 0f bank accoants, balance in Fixed Deports. Mutyal Funds, of the
Company
The management of the Company i1 pursuing legal proceedings and fully coaperating with the Investigative agencies to prave its wand and is cont'dent of dealng with the autcome of the
chargesheet It believes that the allegations leveled in the FIR and cnargesheet are not-maintainable Pending the ungertainty over the autcome of tnis FIR and chargesheat. currently, the
management of the Campany does st faresee a situation that may reswit in any impact an the cansol dated ind AS finangial statements of the Company.,
Off Balance Sheet Exposure
Particulars As at As at
J1st March 2022 31st March 2021
Off balance sheet exposure Nil Nil
Financial Guarantee as a % of total ofi-balance sheet expoters Nil Nil
Nan-Financial Geiristee as 2% of total off-balance sheet exposure Nil Nit
Off balance sheet exposuce to overseas subsidiaries Nit Nil
Letter of Comfont issurd to any subsidiary il Hil
Business Ratlo
[Particulars As at As at
RptMacch0R L 3lstMarenaon |
Return on Equity (RoE) 910 002
Return on Assets {RoA) 0.05 0.01
Net Profit per employee NA NA
|Disclosure of Penaities Imposad by RBI, other regulators and directions on the basis of inspectlon reports or othed] As 3t As 2t
|adverse findings 315t March 2022 315t March 2021
i) Details of penalty levied by SEBI Nl 5,000
Adverse comments by the RBI on regulatory compliances N N
iii) Percentage of etstanding loans granted against coll of gold jewellery to total o ing assets - The Ni N
Company has not granted any loans against collateral of gold jewellery

Merger Application

The Group has fled 3 scheme of gamation with National C y Law Tribanal (NCLT), New Delhi betwesn the nold.ng Carpany, intermediate halding compaty w-th the LI tmate Holding
Campany. As on the date of the approval of 1he fingncal statement, the NCLT has directed the pettioners 1o serve notice of the proposed schame an the concerned Reglonal Director, ROC,
Official Liquidator. Income Tax department, CIC Divisian of RBI and other sectoral regulators having significant bearing ‘n the ageratians of the oerlionar companies As an date of gigning of the
firancial statement petitionars compames has served atl notices 1o all regulatary authraity as regured

The nates to accounts of ART P2P Services {india) Pvt Ltd and ART Insurance Yentires {India) Pvt Ltd, which are subsidiaries of the Corpany, States that: During the Year, thers has baen na
business activities in the Company. I view af the uncertainty asseciated with the future, the tlosing Balance of the recevables and payabies standiag in the boo<s of accounts have either been
sett’ed or adjusted in Lhe subsequent period before the approval of these financial statements. The accounts of the Company, however, continued to be arepared on going concern ammumption
since the management is hopeful of reviving the aperations of the Company In near future. Accardingly. these fSinangial statéments do not include 30y adpsstments relating to the recoverabi ity
and classifications of assets and liabilities that may be necessary if the entity (s ungble to continue as 3 EmINg concern.
While, the notes to accounts of ART India Foundauon, a $ubsidiary, statet that' “There has been a iigmificant decrease in the business activi-es of the Campany. In view of the uncertainty
associated with the futare, the closing ba'ance of the recevables and payablai standing In the books of accounts have either been settled or adjusted in the subsequent serod before the
approval of these financial statements. The accounts of the Campany, however, cantinved 1o be prepared on 0N concern Jssumptian since the management it hopeful of faviving the
aperations of the Campany in near future, Accordingly, théie Einancial statements da not include A7y adjustrents refaling to the recaverabi ty and classifications of assets and lapdiies that
may be necessary if the entity is unable to continue as a £oing concern
The notes to a¢counts of Brandcanvas Wall ART Pyt Ltd stated that: ™ The Corpany has accumulated losses as at 31 March 2022 and its networth has been fully eraded. The Fnancal slatements,
have been prepared using the going concern basis of Acounting, based on the expecied growth apportunities as per the future Susiness plans and the commitment by the Uit mate halding
Company to infuse fands from time to time to meet cash shortfall, if any, 10 justain and exaand speratans of the Company."There hat been a significant decrease in the Dusiness activitied of
the Company. tn view of the uncertainty associated with the tature, the cloning balance of the rece’vables and cayabtes standing in the dooks of accoums have either been sett'ed o adsted 'n
the subsequent perind before the aporoval of these finanzial statements The accounts of the Company, however, contnued o be orepared on gaing concern asiumpton lince the
managernent is hopeful of reviving the aperatians of the Company 'n near futire. Accard Ngly. tnese Fnancial statements do not include any adjustoents relating ta the recoveraodty and
classificatians of assets and liabiites that may be necessary If the ent.ty $ unacle to continue as 3 gOiNg cancern:
Company as per the CIC Master Direction ypdated on 0Sth October, 2020 direct’on maintaned functional website, containmg ##taiis of annual reparts & anmual accounts
4lithe group companies under the CIC is cansolidated in the Cangolidated fnanc ats Statement a1 per tne master diraction - CIC {Reserve Bank) Drrect ons, 2016 updated on 05th October, 2020
Ptovislons and Contingentles
Pravisions and Cantingencies shall be prasanted as und
1Br¢ak up of ‘Provisions and Contingencles’ shown under the Profit and Loss) As at As at
[ Account 31st March 2022 | 315t March
2021
Provisicns for depreciation on tnvestment . -
Provision towards NPA g -
Provigion made towards Income tax S =
Other Provision and Contingencies [with deta 5] - -
|Provision for Standard Assets o
Concentration of NPAs
{Amount in Exposure as 3
000's} % of total
assels
Total Exposure t& top five NPA accounts




55 Ovarseas Assets [for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiari abroad)
Name of the Joint Yenture/Subsidiary Other Partner in lCounlrv Total Assets
the IV
Nil
56 Detalls of Loans and Advances to Related Partigs
Type of Borrower As at 31t March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
P
oy m:r::::la:::; Percentage to the total L
o advance In the A Amount of loan or advance in :ndc::; a:' ‘ol :hto!z ”"’f
nature of loan the nature of lcan outstanding R HLICC UL K
outstandim In the nature toans
s of loans
Promater
Directors
KMPs
Related Parties .
| Totsl - - - +
57 Components of ANW and other ralated Information
|Partleulars As at As at
315t March 2022 313t March 2021
ANW a5 a % of Risk Weighted Assets 50.14% 51.33%
unrealised appreciation in the books value of quoted investments 1,856 1,753
diminution in the apgregate book value of quoted investments - -
Leverage Ratio = 0.95
58 Invesiment In other CICs
. Asat As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
SN ENEE
) Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contnibution made by ene CIC in another CIC {including name|  Rs. 71.60.000 {In Thousands) Rs. 71,60.000 {In Thousands)
of CICs)
b) Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution exceeds 10% of Owned Funds 1} ART Capital India Private|l) ART Capital India Private|
Limited {100% Subsidiary) Limited {100% Subsidiary)
2) ARY Business and consumer|2) ART Business and consumer|
finance (India} Private Limited]finance {India) Private Limited
{100% step down subsidiary) (200% step down subidiary)
3) ART Corporate Finance {india)|3) ART Corporate Finance {India)
Private Limited {100% step down|Private Limited (100% step down,
subsidiary) subsidiary}
) Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital cortnibution is tess than 10% of Owned Funds Mil Nil
59  The notes to accounts of ART Rousing Finance{Indla) Limited,subsidlary of the company states the below:
59.1 Disclosure of frauds as per NHB (ND)/DRS/ Policy Circular No.92/2018-19 dated 05 February, 2019
There was Ni fraud détected during the finang:al year ended 313t March 2027 {Previaus Year 2020-21 Rs 3820 thausand i)
59.2 Impact of COVID-19
COVID -19 pandemic had led to significant decrease in globai and toca! economic activites, which may persist. Considering the oass’b Ly of fourth wave, cveral streds on atfordasle segment
Customers, company has used the principles of prudence ta pravide far the impact of pandemic on the financial statement speciiically wnile assessing the excected credit loss on financial assets
by applying management overlays, approved oy Board of Directars. This has resu'ted in an additional pravision of Rs 86.462 thousands in the year ending Karch 31. 2022 (Previous Year fts
$3,402 thousands).
In Accerdance with the instructions ¢ RBI Circulas no. RBI/2021-22/17/DOR STR.REC.4/21.04 048/2021-22 dated Agril 07, 2021, the HFC shal shal refund fadjust “fnterest an interest” to 31
barrowers including tnose wha had availed of warking capital faci‘tes during the moratorium period, Irrespective of whether maratgriym had been fully o partiaily availed, ar not availed
Pursuant to these instructions, the methodology for calculation of the amount of such “intérest on interest™ nas Been circulated by the Indian Banking Assocation [IBA}. Accordingly company has
aparoariated the "interest on interest™ value in respective loans Subsequent to receiat of clam fram Govt,, liabilty of 4,523 thousands created in Rreviows year is reversed in current fnangisl
year.
Disclosure as requred in terms of circalac on Resolylon Framewore - 20 Resouton of Covid-19 refated stress of Indivduas and Smal Busineiiss BBLI071
22/31/DOR.5TR.REC.11/21.04 048/2021-22 dt. May 05, 2621
5.No. Description Individual Borrowers Small Businesses
Personal Loans Business
Laans
(A} Number of cequests received for invoking resolution procest undes Pare A K] -
(B)  [Number of accounts wheee resolution plan has been implemented ender this window: A
(€3 _|Exposurc ta accounts mentioned ar (1% betore implemenration of e plan 35103 -
{123 JOrd, aggregate amount of debr that was conveered into ather secanines - -
() [Addmonal funding sanctioned. 1f any, including between inveciiion of the plan and - -
|mplkmeatarion
(1} _|Inceease in provisions on account of the mplementarion of the eesnlation plan 1002
€0 Reglstration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The € y has not obtained regi ion from any other Finanee sector regulator
61 The notes 10 accounts of ART Capital Avisory (India} Pyt Ltd anal ART Venture [India} Pvi Ltd , the subsidiaries of the company states that: the Company Setrelary of the Company resigned

on 31.03.2020. Company is in process of appointing Company Secratary as per the requirément of provision of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013,

While in ¢ase of ART Business & Consumer Finance {India} Pvt Ltd and ART Capital Pvt Ltd, subsidiary of the company, it states thai: The Company has regularised the appoirtment of
Company Secretary on its rolls as per the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, subsequent 1o the Balance Sheet date, on dth April, 2022.

And in ART Fintech Pvt Ltd and ART Special Selutions Finance Pyt Ltd, Company is in process of appointing Company Secretary as per the requirement of provision of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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The nates to accounti of ART Special Situations Finance {Ind.al Pt Ltd. the suosid ary 0% the Zompany states that “The Comdany nad 'n the earlier yea entered intg an A55ENMENt agreement
dated 27th Septemoer 2018 witn Punjab Natonal Bank {'tne Assignor] wherein tae ass gnor had ass gned the Loan of Ideal Energy Projetts Lim'ted disbursed unde- the Finance documents
together w tn 2% it rignts, title and interest in the Financing documents and underiyag setur 1y Interests, pledges and/ar guarantees n respect of sucn 0ans 1o the Comopany for 3 oaance
tonsideratan of Ri. 3,60,000 thausands {outstanding amaunt of oringpal and Interest as an tne date of Assignment deed was Ri. 25,10,800 tnousands). This loan was declared as douot‘ul in
the financial year 3018-19 and aczordingly 50% of the tatal amaunt . Rs. 180,000 thausands was provided in the same year Further, t1e Campany had mUated insalvency proceedings
aganst Idea’ Energy Prajects Lamited an 28t Janwrary 2020 w.th Natonal Campany Law Tribunal iNCLT) and tae ordas was received on 17th Fearaany 2020 for a total amount af Rs 31.48,500
thousands

Accardingly, Form G was publahed on 291n October 2020 and the Last date of submission of expression of ‘nterest was finalized as 5t November 2020 A3 per the list of finaneia's cred tars
updated on the website of the Inzaivency Resolution Professiona {IRP}, tae total claim of Rs 31,48,100 thousands was admitted. The Final Fst of Prospective Resalution aoplicants (PRA) was
dublihed an 11th November 2020. Subsequently on OF.03 2022 NCLT Mambai banch has passed order for approving the resalution plas. In view of this, an add.tiona: provision of 25% of the
total amount ¢ Rs. 90,000 thousands was provided in the previous year

Daring the year. the Company had fent a request 1o its 8roun tempanies for wavier of Interest on the tnter Corparate Degosit {tCD) taken by the Company, on account of ongoing litgation
againgl the aromaters and group Comoany and also COVID pandemic. Based an the request sent, the respective board of directors of the groun companes accepted tne request and decided to
provide wavier of the entire Interest On actaunt of the above, Interest expenses amounting to Rs. 43,344 18 thousands were not accounted in the bogks

The Company is not declared a willful defaulter by any bank or firancial institution or ather lenders

The Company has no transactions with the struck off Companies under Section 248 or 560 af the Act.

No proceedings were initiated or pending against the Company far haliting any benami property under the Bernam: Transactions {Frohibition} Act, 1988

There are no ultimate benefitiaries to whom the Company has lent/invested nor received any fund during the year within the meaning of Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 and
Frevention of money Laundering Act 2002

Thigre were no transaction n the Company which is not recorded in the binks of accounts that has been surrendered ar diiciaded as income during tne vear in the Lax assesiments under the
“scome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, $earch of suruey or any other relevant provivians of the income Tax Act, 1961

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
The Company does not have any trade receivable “utstanding in current and previous year and hence ageing, disputed and Security disclosure are not applicable.

The Company kas net borrowed any money from any issue of securities #nd long term borrowings from banks and financial institutions and hence utlization for the specific purpose for
which the funds wev# raised is not applicable

The Company has not done any borrowings frem banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hewee disctosure pestaining to it are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not traded in crypto currency or virtual currency dusing the year

That company is exemptad from the provikon of clause (87) af 1ei'on 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction an number of Layert) Rules, 2017 related ta numbar
ol layers prescribed under the Act

Anisofule amounts less than INR 50 are appearing in the financial statements as "0 due 1o prasentation in thousands
Priwious year's figures have been regrouded, re-arranged and reclass fied wherever necessary to confirm to the current year ¢lassidication as per lndg AS,

For S M M P & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Yes Capital {India} Private Limited

Firm Registration No. 120438
: RTosndam.

Chintan Shah Raakhe Kapoor Tandon Rashi

Partner Oirector DirdZtor
Membership No 166729 DiN_ 00501988 LIN- 05167806
UDiN No.

Place : Mumgai Place Landan Place - Mumbai
b ,'b r1 [M— Date Date







